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Hormatli sehmdarlar, migtarilar va tarsfdaslar!

icazenizle, diggatinize Xalg Bankin 2013-cii ilin
hesabatini taqdim edirom. 2013-ci il 6lkemizin, elacoe
da Bankimizin inkigaf tarixinds oldugca slamatdar bir
donam oldu.

Diinya iqtisadiyyatl i¢lin mirekkab kegan 2013-
ci ilde dovlet rehberliyinin hayata kecirdiyi igtisadi
siyasatin sayasinda Olkemiz bitin sahslerda inkigaf
templari gostermakda davam etmisdir. il arzinde Umumi
Daxili Mahsulun artimi 6 faiz tagkil etmigdir. Xiisusan
da bu artimin dlkenin qeyri-neft sektorunda miisahida
olunan boylk inkisafin fonunda bas vermaesi oldugca
sevindiricidir. 2013-cli ilde Azerbaycan igtisadiyyatina
yatinlan sarmayaslar 28,0 milyard ABS dollar taskil
etmigdir ki, bu da mstaqil Respublikamizin tarixinds an
yiksak gostaricidir. Bu yatinmlarin boyik hissasi daxili,
milli sarmayalerdir. icra edilan boyiik investisiyalara
baxmayaraq olkanin valyuta ehtiyatlari 2013-cii ilds 50,0
milyard ABS dollarina catmisdir. Olke igtisadiyyatinin
bitin sahalarinda inkigaf ve dinamik artim misgahida
olunur. 2013-cii ilde Azarbaycanin xarici dovlat borcu
Umumi Daxili Mshsulun 8 faizini togkil etmisdir.
Tesadiifi deyil ki, Davos Diinya iqtisadi Forumu milli
igtisadiyyatimizi yilksak ragabatlilik gabiliyystine goro
diinyada 39-cu yera layiq gormusdr.

Oten il dlkemizin adinin ham da kosmik dvlstler
sirasina yazilmasi ile yadda qaldi. Artiq fazada
Azarbaycanin 6z peyki faaliyyat gostarir. ilin sonunda isa
XXI asrin muqavilesi - “Sahdaniz-2” investisiya sazigi
baglanmisdir. Bu, 6tan il hayata kegirilon layihalerin bir

Asim Mammadli,
Miisahide Surasinin Sedri

Asim Mammadli,
Chairman of the Supervisory Board

Dear shareholders, customers and partners!

We proudly present the report of 2013, year full of
success and achievements for Azerbaijan as well as for
Xalq Bank.

Though the past 2013 was a difficult year for world
economy, in Azerbaijan thanks to the economic policy
implemented by the government, development and
growth was observed in all sectors of the economy. The
Gross Domestic Product in our country rose by 6 percent.
It is even more delightful that along with the greater
development, this growth is particularly observed in the
non-oil sector. Investments in Azerbaijani economy in
2013 reached a historical record amount of investments
in our republic and constituted 28,0 billion U.S. dollars
which largely comprised by domestic, in other words,
national investments. Despite the vast invested amounts,
the foreign currency reserves of the country in 2013
followed a new record and reached 50,0 billion U.S.
dollars. A large growth and dynamic development is
observed in all industries of country’s economy. The
external debt of Azerbaijan in 2013 amounted to 8% of
GDP. It is not a coincidence that our national economy
was ranked 39th in the world by the World Economic
Forum based on high competitiveness.

Last year, the country was marked by including its
name in the list of countries with space presence, as it
already operates its own satellite in cosmos. By the end
of the year, the XXl century investment agreement Shah
Deniz-2 was signed. This is just one part of a number of
projects realized last year, and by and large, the 2013
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hissasidir. Umumilikde 2013-cii il dlkemizin tarixinde
oldugca ahamiyyatli hadisalarle zangin bir il oldu.

2013-cuilda tmumi igtisadi va sosial inkigaf olkemizin
maliyya sektoruna da 6z miisbat tesirini gostarmis ve
bank bazarinda dinamik artimi gartlandirmigdir. Bankimiz
2013-cii ilde bir gox nailiyyatiere imza atmisdir. ilk
ndvbada onu geyd etmaliyam ki, misbat isglizar miihit
ve pegakar personalin sayleri naticasinda inkigafimiz
bazar (izre orta artim dinamikasini {istelomigdir. isgiizar
faalligimiz naticesinds Xalq Bank strateji plana asasen il
arzinda garsiya qoyulan vezifalerin 6hdasindan galmis va
bir sira ugurlu naticalare nail olmugdur.

Olbatta, secilmis strategiyanin dogrulugunun en
bariz gostericisi ilin maliyya naticsleridir. 2013-cii ilda
Xalq Bank tarixinds ilk dofa asas maliyye gOstaricilorina
gora Azarbaycanin 6zel banklar arasinda birinci siraya
yiiksalmisdir.

2013-ci ilde Bankimizin kredit portfeli 1,0
milyard manati 6tdli. Bu isa kredit sektorunda lider
movgelarimizi daha da modhkemlstdiyimiza dslalst edir.
Hazirda kredit portfelinin boyilk hissesini korporativ
musgtarilarin kreditleri tagkil edir. Lakin bununla yanagi
biz son illerda perakenda bazarda payimizin artiriimasi
yoninda miixtalif tedbirler hayata kegiririk va tadrican
bu istigamatde movqelarimizi giiclondiririk. dvvalki ilde
oldugu kimi 2013-cii ilde de perakends miistarilarin
kredit portfelinde artim miisahide olunur.

Oten il arzinde Bankimizin 6lkanin boyiik seharleri
- Lankaran, Semkir va Sirvanda yeni filiallan faaliyyats
basladi, Ganca filialnin yeni binasi istifadaya verildi.
Filial gabakasinin, xiisusan da bolgalards genislanmasi,
Bankin insanlara yaxin olmasi, onlara yiiksek xidmat va
bol ¢esidda mahsul taklif etmasi, bolgalerda sahibkarliga
doastak olmasi daim diggstimizdadir ve bu saha bizim
inkisafimizin asas strateji istigamatidir. Qargidaki illarde
biz Azarbaycanin buttn gaharlarinda filiallarimizia tamsil
olunmag ve yerlarda ahaliys 6z xidmat ve mahsullarimizi
taklif etmayi hadsflayirik.

Bankimizin ugurlarinin esas tekanvericisi - vahid
komanda saklinda birlagan amakdaglarimizdir va buna
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was certainly a year, rich with crucial events in the history
of our country.

The country’soverall economic and social development
in 2013 did positively influence the financial sector and
stipulated the dynamic growth of the banking industry.
In this sense, the Bank’s achievements in 2013 are quite
remarkable. First of all, it should be noted that due to a
positive working atmosphere, professional personnel and
our faithful partners our development rate exceeded the
average development dynamic in the market. As a result
of our activities, the measures according to the Bank
approved strategic development plan were successfully
implemented and accomplished results outweighed the
forecasted indicators.

Of course, the most obvious indicator that proves
the right choice of the selected strategy is the annual
financial results. In 2013, the main financial indicators for
the first time in the history of the Xalq Bank reached the
first place among private banks in Azerbaijan.

The Bank’s loan portfolio exceeded one billion in 2013,
and further reinforced our leader position in the loan
segment. Currently, a large proportion of the loan portfolio
is comprised of loans to corporate customers. In addition,
we have recently implemented a number of measures in
retail banking, and gradually strengthen our position in
this regard. As in previous years, the 2013 highlighted an
increase in retail banking customers in the loan portfolio.

Over the past year, the Bank established new branches
in country’s largest cities — Lankaran, Shirvan, Shamkir
and delivered the construction of the new branch office
building in Ganja. The key direction which remains in the
focal point of our attention and constitutes the foundation
of our strategy is to expand branch network, particularly
in the regions, to be close to people, as well as offer them
a range of high quality services and products and support
local entrepreneurship. In the coming years, we will be
represented in all the cities of Azerbaijan and we aim to
offer the services and products to local population there.

One of the main objectives of the Bank’s strategy is
human capital and investment in our employees. Last



gora do foaliyystimizin asas prinsiplarden biri insan
kapitalina etdiyimiz yatnmlardir. Oten ilde bu sahade
ahamiyyatli addimlar atiimigdir. Personalin karyera artimi
modeli va inkisaf programini tekmillagdirdik va il arzinda
amakdaslarimizin pesakar bilik saviyyasini yiiksaltdik.

Artiq yilksak va miiasir texnologiyalar hayatimizin
biitiin sahalarina niifuz edir, istanilan biznesda vacib rol
oynayr, xtisusen da bankgliligda. Biz har zaman innovativ
hallara, texniki inkisaf va texnoloji destaya boylk 6nam
veririk. Arxada qalan iller da gbsterir ki, informasiya
texnologiyalarina ve insan kapitalina etdiyimiz yatirnmiar
0ziinli dogruldur va Bankimizin inkisafini lablid edir. Xalq
Bankin yerli bazarda aparici banklarin sirasinda olmasi
da bunu tesdiq edir.

Xalg Bankin bitlin istiqgamatler Gizra dinamik inkisafi
beynalxalq reyting sirkatlerinin diggstindan kanarda
galmamisdir. Moody’s investors Service beynalxalg
reyting agentliyi Bankimizin uzunmiiddstli milli va
xarici valyutada olan ohdaliklor reytingini B3-dan B2-
yo yiksaltmisdir. Agentlik Bankin E+ serbast maliyya
dayanighgr va qisamiiddatli milli ve xarici valyutada olan
ohdaliklarini yenidan tasdiglayib. Aldigimiz reytinglar
stabil prognoza malikdirlar.

Ugurlara imza atmagq, har hansi bir sahanin lideri
olmaq isin yansidir. Qazanilan movgelari gorumag,
onlari daha da mohkamlandirmak, tarafdaglarin etibarini
derinlagdirmak, isglzar nifuzu daha da ylksaltmak
— budur an gatin vazifs, an boyik amal. Daim inkigaf
etmak, takmillagmak, bazarin caginglarina, mdisgterinin
talablarina cavab vermak, hamiga bir addim iralida olmagq
isimizin asas prinsiplaridir.
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year, important steps were taken in this field. Model
for career growth and staff development program were
improved allowing our staff to increase their professional
skills level.

To achieve the goals in front of us we rely on high
tech operation platforms and highly skilled professionals.
The previous years likewise demonstrated that the
information technology and human capital investments
were justified and are certainly prerequisite for Bank’s
development. In short period of time, Xalg Bank was
transformed into a leading financial institution capable
to provide a full spectrum of up to date banking products
and services to natural and legal persons.

Xalg Bank’s dynamic development in all areas
was also noted by international rating agencies. The
international rating agency Moody’s Investors Service
upgraded global long-term local and foreign currency
deposit rating to B2 from B3. The agency reaffirmed the
bank’s E + financial strength and short-term national and
international currency deposit rating; received ratings
have a stable forecast.

Succeeding in any field or becoming the leader is
only half the job. The most challenging task and the
main objective are to defend achieved positions, further
strengthen the success, deepen the trust with partners
and enhance the business reputation. The primary
principles for us are based on continuous development,
self improvement, meeting the markets and customers
expectations and be one step ahead.

Customers’ needs and expectations are always the
most important thing for us. And that is why during
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Miisterilarimizin gozlantilari, onlarin istaklari bizim
iigiin her zaman boyiik ahamiyyat kesb edib. il arzinds
biz xidmatlarimizin tekmillasdirilmasini, infrastrukturun
geniglenmasini, yeni xidmat ve mahsullarin tstbigini,
xidmat keyfiyyatinin yiiksak standartlara uygunlugunu
diggat markezinds saxlamagla biitiin istigamatler iizra
inkisaf etdik.

Sosial masuliyyat miistavisinde gordiyimiiz iglar
bizim (i¢iin oldugca dayarlidir. Bankimiz yarandigi glindan
olkenin idman ve madaniyyat sahasing aktiv dastak verir,
Azarbaycan elmi, adabiyyati ve incesanatinin 6lkemizin
hiidudlarindan kenarda taninmasi istiqgamatinda todbirler
heyata kegirir. Oten il Xalq ®manati layihasi gargivasinda
Mikayll Musfigin - “Segilmis asarlari’ni va “Gance
rassamlar” badii albomunu genis ictimaiyysts taqdim
etdik. Bankin “Ganca” filialinin yeni istifadeys verilmis
binasinda rasm qalereyasi agdiq va Ganca rassamlarinin
asarlerini sargiladik.

Oten il biz davamli inkisafin méhkem biinévrasini
goydug. Galacakde ise bazarda qazandigimiz lider
movqeyini qoruyub saxlamaq (gin bitin gicimizi
soferbar edacayik. Bu, hazirki ragabat mihitinda heg
da asan olmayacag. Man aminam ki, bizim pesakar
kollektivimiz tarafdag ve mdusgtarilarimizla birlikda bu
ugura da imza atacaq. 2013-cii ilde Bankimizla birlikda
olan, bizimls ¢iyin-giyine addimlayan dostlarimiz va
tarafdaglarimiza aramizda olan boytk haqiqi etibar, illarin
sinagindan ¢ixmis qarsiligh-faydal isgiizar miinasibatlera
gora darin minnatdarhgimi bildirirom.

Man Bankimizin kollektivini xiisusi geyd etmak istordim.
Onlarin yiiksok isglizar niifuzu, pesekarhigi, darin biliklari ve
isa sadigliyi sayasinda bugiinkii inkisaf mimkiin olmusdur.
Onlann amayinin naticsleri ila Siz Xalg Bankin 2013-cii il
dair illik Hesabatinda tanis ola bilarsiniz.

on xos arzularla,
Asim Mammadli
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the last year we developed and focused on all directions
including service improvement, infrastructure expansion,
new services and products introduction, and service quality
in compliance with the highest standards.

We are confident that the future of the business
constitutes a close bond along with the social welfare and
stability of the country, the science and education progress,
and important achievements in culture and sports. Xalq
Bank considered these facts and actively supported the
sport and culture initiatives in the country, as well as carried
out a number of events to increase the awareness on
Azerbaijani science, literature, and art beyond our borders.

Last year The National Heritage project featured a public
presentation of the album by Mikayil Mushvig’s Selected
Works and Ganja artists art album. The new building of
Xalg Bank branch in Ganja hosted an art gallery and artists
works from Ganja were demonstrated in the exposition.

Last year, we set a solid foundation for sustainable
development, whereas maintaining the achieved leading
position in the market remains as our future goal. This
will be nothing easy in existing competitive environment,
but in joint efforts together with our team of professionals
built over the years, reliable partners and customers, we
are confident we can achieve it. | would like to express
my deep gratitude to everyone who was next to us in
2013, shoulder to shoulder, our friends and partners whom
we treat with sincere trust for their endless loyalty and
mutually beneficial business relations.

I would like to specifically underpin our most valuable
capital - our people. Their high profile qualified reputation,
professionalism, deep knowledge and commitment to
work made today’s development real.

Results of their hard work can be found in the Annual
Report 2013.

With best regards,
Asim Mammadli
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2013-cu ilda Azarbaycan
gtisadiyyatinin umumi icmall

General overview of Azerbaijan economy in 2013

2013-cti ilda inkisaf etmis bazi
dovlstlarda igtisadi sabitlik, iqtisadiyyati
kecid dovriinii yagayan bir cox dlkalarda
is9 kicik artim miisahida olunmasina
baxmayaraq yaxin perspektivdes diinyada
iqtisadi-sosial sarsintilarin davam
edacayi prognozlasdirilir. Qlobal igtisadi
inkisafin garsisinda duran problem va
risklar movcud resurslari safarbar etmak,
masqullug, ragabat problemlarinin halli
va struktur islahatlarin kegirilmasini zaruri
etdi. Oten ilin hadisalari igtisadiyyatin
globallagmasi garaitinda iqtisadi siyasatda
hayata kegirilan tadbirlarin bir sira

fasadlara yol aca bilacayini nimayis etdirdi.

inkigaf etmis dlkalerde miigahida olunan
geyri-barabar artim, makroiqtisadiyyatda
atilmig addimlar bazar formalagmaqgda
olan olkelarda nizamsiz galxib-enmalardan
alava, ham da igtisadi siyasatin
tanzimlanmasina mane olurdu.

Biitiin sadalanan negativ amillare
baxmayaraq Azerbaycan igtisadiyyati
2013-cii ilda xarici tahliika ve manfi
tasirlare garsi dayanigliq gdstarmis va
naticada ylksek igtisadi inkisafa va sosial
rifahin artimina nail olmugdur. Hokumatin
hesabatina esasan 2013-cii ilds Umumi
Daxili Mahsulun (UDM) hacmi awvalki illa
miigayisada 5,8%, yaxud ragamlo ifada
etsak 3,7 milyard manat artaraq 57,7
milyard manat tagkil etmigdir. Adambasina
diisan UDM hacmi isa 4,4% artaraq
6 207 manata ($7 958) catib. 2014-cii ilin

Although 2013 was noted by the
economic stability in some developed
countries and small growth in many
countries with transit economy, short-
term forecasts indicate the continuing
socio-economic shattering in the world.
Problems and risks facing the global
economic development necessitated
the mobilisation of existing resources,
resolution of employment, competition
problems and implementation of structural
reforms. Last year events demonstrated
that actions taken in economic policy in
the conditions of economic globalization
could result in a number of complications.
Irregular growth observed in developed
countries, measures taken in macro-
economy resulted in uncontrolled growth
and decline in countries with emerging
market, as well as hindered the regulation
of the economic policy.

Irrespective of all mentioned negative
factors Azerbaijan economy withstood
the external threats and adverse impacts
in 2013 and, as a result, achieved high
economic development and increased
social welfare. According to the
government reports the Gross Domestic
Product (GDP) in 2013 increased by 5.8%
or 3.7 billion manats as compared to the
previous year and reached 57.7 billion
manats. The amount of GDP per capita
has increased by 4.4% reaching 6 207
manats ($7 958). At the beginning of 2014
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avvaling Azarbaycan Respublikasinin xarici
dovlet borcu 4,75 milyard manat, xarici
dovlat borcunun UDM-ya olan nisbati 8,2%
taskil etmig va bu sahada bir gox inkigaf
etmis va inkisaf etmakda olan Glkelari
gabaglamisdrr.

Qeyri-neft sektorunun inkisafina
yonalan tadbirlar naticesinda igtisadiyyatin
bu istigamatinda il arzinda 9,8% artim alda
edilmigdir. Hesabat dovriinda geyri-neft
sektorunda 32,6 milyard manat hacminda
alava doyar yaradilimigdir. istehsal olunmug
mahsullarin dayari 4,8% artaraq
6,8 milyard manata barabar olmusdur.

qtisadiyyatin inkisafi, miixtelif
infrastruktur va sosial layihslarin
gercaklasmasina 2013-cli ilda
22,0 milyard manat serf olunmusdur.
qtisadiyyatin neft sektoruna 5,6 milyard
manat yonaldilmigdisa, geyri-neft sektoruna
goyulmus sarmaya 16,3 milyard manat
taskil etmigdir. Bu yatinmlarin 62,4%-i
daxili resurslar hesabina formalagmigdir.
2012-ci ila nishatds olke igtisadiyyatina
yatinimig investisiyalarin hacmi 8,7%
artmigdir. Son on ilda 6lks igtisadiyyatinin
inkisafina 127,5 milyard manat
($155,6 milyard) sarmaya goyulmusdur.

2014-cii ilin yanvar ayinin 1-na olan
malumata gora iqtisadiyyatda muzdla
calisan isgilarin say1 1,51 milyon nafar
taskil etmisdir. Dovlat Statistika Komitasinin
malumatina gora onlardan 900,2 min
nafari igtisadiyyatin dovlst sektorunda,
609,9 min nafari iss 0zal sektorda
faaliyyat gostermisdir. igsizliyin tam aradan
galdinimasina yonalan tadbirler naticasinda
2013-cti ilda 110 min i yeri agilmigdir.
Bunlardan 80 mini daimi ig yerlaridir.
Igsizliyin seviyyasi 5,3%-dek enmigdir.
Otan ilin yanvar-dekabr aylarinda élke
igtisadiyyatinda muzdla galigan iscilarin
orta ayliq nominal amak haqqi 423,0 manat

UDM-nin strukturunda geyri-neft sektorunun sahaler {izra pay!
The structure of GDP related to non-oil sector
26% @ Sosial va digar xidmatler
Social and other services
20.9% @ Tikinti
Construction
12.5% @ Ticaret, naqliyyat vasitelerinin temiri
Trade, repair of vehicles
9.4% @ Kend, mese va baliqiliq teserriifati
Agriculture forestry and fishing
8.6% @ Nagliyyat ve anbar tesarriifati
Transportation and storage
82% | Qeyri neft sanayesi
Non-oil industry
8.1% @ Mehsulave idxala xalis vergilar (geyri-neft sektoru tizra)
Net taxes (on non-oil sector) on product and import
32% @ Turistlerin yerlasdirilmasi va ictimai iaga
Accommaodation of tourists and catering
31% @ informasiya va rabita
Information and communication

the capital export national debt of the
Republic of Azerbaijan was 4.75 billion
manats with the national debt to GDP ratio
constituting 8.2%, which was ahead of
many developed and developing countries.

As a result of measures taken for
development of non-oil sector, this sector
of economy has gained 9.8% growth
during the year. The non-oil sector has
generated 32.6 billion manats added value
during the reporting period. The amount of
manufactured products has increased by
4.8% reaching 6.8 billion manats.

The amount spent for development
of economy, implementation of various
infrastructure and social projects in 2013
was 22.0 billion manats. The investment
in oil sector of economy was 5.6 billion
manats, while the investment in non-oil
sector constituted 16.3 billion manats.
62.4% of these investments were on
the account of internal resources. The
volume of investments in the state
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2013-cu ilds
Inflyasiyanin
saviyyasi 2,4%
taskil etdiyi halda,
ahalinin nominal pul
galirleri 8% artarag
37,6 milyard
manata gatmisdir

olmusdur. igtisadiyyatin madancixarma
sanayesinda, maliyya va sigorta
fealiyyatinda, informasiya va rabitads,
pesa, elmi va texniki faaliyyst sahasinds,
tikintids, inzibati va yardimgi xidmatlarin
gosterilmasi sahasinda orta ayliq nominal
amak haqq daha yliksek olmugdur.
2013-cii ilds inflyasiyanin seviyyasi
2,4% toaskil etdiyi halda, shalinin nominal
pul galirleri 8% artaraq 37,6 milyard
manata ¢atmigdir. Galirin adambasina
diigen hacmi 4 039,6 manata barabar
olmusdur. Bu isa 6tanilki gostaricidan
6,6% coxdur. Bu il ham da vatandaglarin
kegmis SSRi 8manat Bankinda galan
amanatlarinin gaytariimasi prosesi

ugurla baga catdinimigdir. 1,623 milyon
amanat hesabi (izre 597,0 milyon manat
hacminda fardi birdsfalik 6damaler hayata
kegirilmigdir.

il arzinda sahibkarhgin inkisafi daim
dovlatin diggat markazinds olmusgdur.
Hesabat dovriinde sahibkarliga 275,0
milyon manat hacminda glizastli kreditler
verilmigdir.

flin sonuna olan malumatlara gére
igtisadiyyatin biitiin sahaleri tizra
ahamiyyatli arim misgahida olunur. Yeyinti
senayesi mahsullarinin istehsalinda 4,8%,
ingaat materiallan istehsalinda 21%, masin
v avadanlig sanayesinda 27,3%, kimya
senayesinda 19,5%, metallurgiya sahasinda
1,5%, avtomobil sanayesinda 28,8%, mebel
istehsalinda 5,9%, poligrafiya sahasinda
32,8% artima nail olunmusgdur.

economy compare to 2012 increased
by 8.7%. Total amount of investments in
the development of the economy for the
last ten years was 127.5 billion manats
($155.6 billion).

According to the data of January 1,
2014, the number of hired workers in
the economy was 1.51 million people.
According to the State Statistic Committee
data, 900.2 thousand of them worked in
the government sector and 609.9 thousand
in the private sector of the economy. As
a result of actions taken for elimination
of unemployment 110 thousand new
job places were opened in 2013; 80
thousand of them are permanent jobs.

The level of unemployment was reduced
10 5.3%. In January-December of the last
year the average nominal salary of hired
workers in the country was 423.0 manats.
The average nominal salary of workers
engaged in extraction industry, finance and
insurance, information and communication,
professional, scientific and technical fields,
construction, administration and auxiliary
services was higher.

While the level of inflation in 2013
was 2.4%, the nominal money income
of the population has increased by 8%
reaching 37.6 billion manats. The income
per capita was 4 039.6 manats, which
is 6.6% higher as compared to last year.
This year the reimbursement of deposits
of citizens placed in the former USSR
Saving Bank was also successfully
completed. Individual lump-sum payments
in the amount of 597.0 million manats
were made on 1.623 million deposit
accounts.

The development of entrepreneurship
was under constant control of the state
throughout the year. Entrepreneurs
received concessional loans in the amount
of 275.0 million manats during the
reporting period.

As per the data at the year-end,
significant growth is observed in all
sectors of the economy. The achieved
growth was 4.8% in production of
food industry, 21% in production of
construction materials, 27.3% in
machinery and equipment industry, 19.5%
in chemical industry, 1.5% in metallurgy,
28.8% in car industry, 5.9% in furniture
manufacturing, 32.8% in printing industry.
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Hesabat dvrii arzinde Azerbaycan
diinyanin 149 6lkasi ila ticarst
amaliyyatlar hayata kegirmigdir. Bu
olkelarla (imumi xarici ticaratin dovriyyesi
34,7 milyard ABS dollari tagkil etmisdir. il
arzinde mahsullarin ixraci 23,9 milyard,
idxall iss 10,8 milyard ABS dollarina
barabar olmugdur. dmtaa dovriyyssinda
musahida olunan miishat saldo 13,27
milyard ABS dollari hacminda olmusdur.
Dévr arzinda an iri idxalci olke italiya,
ixracatgl 0lka Rusiya olmusdur.

2013-cii ilde Azarbaycanin
informasiya-Kommunikasiya
Texnologiyalar (IKT) sahasinds miigahida
olunan artim tempi (14%) bu sahanin
diinya Uzrs inkisaf tempini 2 dafa
ustalamigdir. Bu sahanin galirleri il arzinda
1,632 milyard manat tegkil etmisdir. IKT
sektoruna hesabat dovriinds 202,2 milyon
manat sarmaye qoyulmusdur. Olkemiz
ilk telekommunikasiya peykini orbite
gondarmigdir. Hazirda “Azerspace-1” peyki
vasitasila 60-dan ¢ox yerli ve xarici kanalin
yayimi tagkil olunur.

Umumilikde 2013-cii ili Azerbaycan
igtisadiyyati tigtin novbati ugurlu il saymaq
olar. Olks igtisadiyyatinin hartarafli inkigafi
diinya birliyinde boyiik niifuz sahibi olan
beynalxalg qurumlarin tertib etdiklari
hesabat va reyting cadvallarinda 6z
aksini tapir. Olkamiz ananavi olaraq bu
ciir beynalxalq reyting cadvallarinds ilk
siralarda gararlagir. Diinya igtisadi Forumu
igtisadiyyatlarin ragabat qabiliyyatliliyina
gora Azarbaycani MDB makaninda birinci
yera layiq gortir. Bu glin regional giic
markazi gisminda gabul olunan dlkemiz
Coanubi Qafgaz igtisadiyyatinin 80%-na
sahibdir. igtisadiyyatin saxslenmasi,
darinlagmasi, irimiqyasli regional,
infrastruktur layihalarinin icrasi, 6zal
sektorun geniglandirilmasi, regionlarin
inkisafi va diger sahalerda miihiim
ugurlar segilan siyasi, igtisadi, sosial
kursun dogrulugunu bir daha siibut edir.
Bu ugurlarin diinyada taninmasi, gabul
edilmasi va yiiksak giymatlandiriimasinin
bariz gostericisi isa “Standard & Poor’s”
beynalxalq reyting agentliyinin Azerbaycan
igtisadiyyatinin méveud durumunu
“Stabil”den “Pozitiv”a yiikseltmasidir.

During the reporting period Azerbaijan
conducted trade transactions with 149
countries. Total foreign trade turnover with
these countries was 34.7 billion US dollars.
During the year the total export amounted
to 23.9 billion US dollars and the amount of
import constituted 10.8 billion US dollars.
Positive balance in commodity turnover was
13.27 billion US dollars. During this period
ltaly was the biggest importing country and
Russia - the biggest exporting country.

The growth rate observed in Information-
Communication Technologies (ICT) sector
of Azerbaijan in 2013 (14%) was twice
as much as the development rate in the
world. The income of this sector was 1.632
billion manats a year. During the reporting
period 202.2 million manats investment
was placed in ICT sector. Our country has
launched the first telecommunication
satellite. At present “Azerspace-1” satellite
transmits more than 60 local and foreign
channels.

Overall, 2013 can be considered as a
next successful year for Azerbaijan economy.
The balanced growth of the economy is
reflected in the rating tables prepared by the
international organizations highly reputable
in the world. Azerbaijan is among the
leaders in various reports and rating tables.
For example, our country is traditionally
on the top of the rating tables reflecting
the international economic development.
The World Economic Forum places
Azerbaijan in the first among CIS countries
as per the competitiveness of economy.
Today our country accepted as a regional
powerful centre and holds 80% of the
South Caucasian economy. Diversification,
enhancement of economy, execution of
large scale regional, infrastructure projects,
expansion of private sector, development of
regions and important successes in other
sectors prove once more the correctness
of the selected political, economical and
social direction. The obvious indicator
of acknowledgement, acceptance and
appreciation of these successes in the world
is rising of the present status of Azerbaijan
economy from “Stable” to “Positive” by
“Standard & Poor’s” international rating
agency.
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While the level of
inflation in 2013
was 2.4%, the
nominal money
income of the
population has
increased by 8%
reaching 37.6
billion manats
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AR Markazi Bankinin
1 yanvar 2014-cl

I tarixing olan
melumatina gora
banklarn dmumi
Ohdaliklari 12,6%
artarag 16,997
milyard manat taskil
etmisdir

Azarbaycanin Bank sektoru

2013-cu Ilds

The banking system of Azerbaijan in 2013

2013-ci ilds Azarbaycanin bank
sektoru 0z dinamik inkisafini davam etdirdi.
il arzinda bank sistemi maliyya dayanighg,
aktivlerin keyfiyyati, likvidlik, gslirlilik va bir
sira digar gostaricilar baximindan daha da
mohkamlandi. Kapitalin adekvatligi talab
olunan 12%-lik gostariciden daha yiiksak —
17,6%-i taskil etdi.

Moarkazi Bankin sarancaminda
olan valyuta ehtiyatlarinin hacmi Gten
ille miigayisada 2,46 milyard manat
(21%) artaraq 14,152 milyard manat
tagkil etdi. 2013-cli il ham da sektorun
kapitalizasiyasinin artim proseslori vo
tanzimlayici terafindan banklarin kredit
amaliyyatlarina nazarstin giiclonmasi
ila alamatdar oldu. il arzinde maliyya
xidmatlarindan istifada xeyli geniglanmig
va bu xidmatlarin boylik hissasini avvalki
illarda oldugu kimi kredit amaliyyatlan tagkil
etmigdir. Umumilikda ilin yekununa gére
Olkada 43 bank faaliyyat gosterib. Hesabat
dovrtinda 50 yeni filialla geniglanan bank
sektorunun aktivleri 3,855 milyard manat
(23,3%) artaraq 20,185 milyard manat
taskil etmigdir.

AR Moarkazi Bankinin 1 yanvar 2014-cli
il tarixina olan malumatina gora banklarin
Umumi 6hdalikleri 12,6% artaraq 16,997
milyard manat taskil etmisdir. Qeyd etmak
lazimdir ki, bu artim asasan daxili bazarin
vasaitlari hesabina bag vermisdir. Bela ki,
hiiquai v fiziki saxslarin bank depozitlerinin
Umumi hacmi 2013-c ilin mivafiq
gostaricisina nishatan 25% artaraq 12,476

In 2013 Azerbaijani sector continued
its dynamic development. During the year,
the banking system was strengthened by
a number of indicators including financial
stability of the banking system, asset
quality, liquidity, profitability. The capital
adequacy reached 17.6% exceeding the
required 12%.

The volume of foreign currency
reserves held by the Central Bank
increased by 2.46 billion manats (21%)
compared to the last year and reached
14.152 billion manats. Capitalization
growth in 2013 as well as control of
the regulator over credit transactions of
the banks have been marked this year.
During the year the expansion of financial
services as in previous years rose and
the majority of these services were
credit operations. A total of 43 banks are
operating in the country based on yearly
results. During the reporting period, 50
new branches accompanied the expansion
of the banking sector assets, by an
increase of 3.855 billion manats (23.3%)
and reaching an amount of 20.185 billion
manats.

According to the Central Bank of
Azerbaijan Republic as of January 1, 2014,
banks’ total liabilities increased by 12.6%
to 16.997 billion manats. It should be
noted that this increase occurred mainly at
the expense of the domestic market funds.
Thus, the total volume of bank deposits of
individual and legal persons increased by
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milyard manat tagkil etmisdir. Bu mablagin
51%-i (6,411 milyard) milli valyutada olan
amanatlardir. Manat amansatlarinin 2,327
milyard manat hacminda olan

hissasi talabli, galan 4,084 milyard manat
hacminda hissasi isa miiddatli amanatlardir.
Xarici valyutada olan amanatlarin hacmi
6,065 milyard manat tagkil edib. Depozit
portfelinin terkibinda fiziki saxslarin
amanatlori otan ille miiqayisads 25,1%
artaraq 6,396 milyard manat haddina catib.
2013-cii ilda dlka ahalisi banklarda amanat
yerlagdirarkan daha ¢ox milli valyutaya
usttinliik vermigdir. Belo ki, fiziki sexslerin
amanatlarinin 60%-dan ¢oxu mahz manat
amanatlaridir. Bu da 6z novbasinda tlke
ahalisinin milli valyutaya olan darin inamina
dalalst edir.

25% compared to the total volume of 2013
with 12.476 billion manats respectively.
51% (6.411 billion) of this amount are
deposits in the national currency.

2.327 billion manats of national currency
deposits are deposits on demand and

the rest 4.084 billion manats are on term
basis. Foreign currency deposits are 6.065
billion manats. Deposits by individuals
within the deposit portfolio grew by 25.1%
compared to the last year and reached
6.396 billion manats. The country’s
population in 2013 gave preference to

the national currency when placed saving
deposits in banks, as individuals’ deposits
in manat amounted to 60% of the total
deposits, and this in turn demonstrates the
profound trust in the national currency.
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According to the
Central Bank of
Azerbaijan Republic
as of January 1,
2014, banks' total
liabilities increased by
12,6% t0 16,997
billion manats
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Markazi Bankin
malumatina gore
Azarbaycan banklar
hesabat dovrinds
14,490 milyon
manat hacminds
kredit vermiglar

W
)

Bank sektorunun aktivlerinin 2013-cii
ilde miigahida olunan artiminin baglica
sobabi geyri-neft sektorunda igtisadi
canlanma va natice etibari ile kreditlara
olan talabin artmast ile bagldr. il arzinde
Azorbaycan banklar 6lks igtisadiyyatinin
kreditlagmasini 26% artirmigdir. Markazi
Bankin malumatina gora Azarbaycan
banklan hesabat dovriinda 14,49 milyard
manat hacminda kredit vermigler.

Kredit portfelinda hiiqugi sexslara

verilmig kreditlarin payi 61,4%, yaxud
7,913 milyard manat tagkil etmigdir. Ev
tasarriifatlarina verilan kreditlorin hacmi
5,794 milyard manati 6tmisdur. Daginmaz
amlakin tikintisi va alinmasi tgun fiziki
soxslara verilan kreditlarin hacmi 891,0

LR
-
-
L
l ’

milyon manat haddina ¢atmigdir. Kredit
portfelinda vaxti kegmis kreditlarin payi
2012-ci ilin sonuna olan gostarici (6,2%)
ile miigayisada 1% azalaraq 5,2% taskil
etmisdir. Oten il imumi kredit portfelinin
strukturu xeyli dayismisdir. Bu dovrde milli
valyutada olan kreditlarin artim (29,5%)
dinamikasi xarici valyutada olan kreditlarin
artim (3,5%) dinamikasini 8,5 dafe
uistalamigdir. Naticads kredit portfelinin
strukturunda milli valyutada verilan
kreditlarin pay! 71%-a ¢atmigdir.

Hesabat dévriinde banklar bolgalerin
kreditlagmasini davam etdirmigdir.
Naticada bdlgalera kredit qoyuluglari
2012-ci illa miigayisada 30% artaraq

The main reason for the growth of
assets in the banking sector in 2013 is an
increase observed in the non-oil sector
and eventually economic recovery in
the demand for loans increased as well.
During the year, the banks’ lending to the
economy of the country has increased
by 26%. According to the Central Bank
information the banks issued loans for
14.49 billion manats during the reporting
period. The credit portfolio of legal persons
featured 61.4% share of the loan portfolio
or 7.913 billion manats. An amount
exceeding 5.794 billion manats in the
volume of loans belongs to household
segment. Real estate and construction
loans to individuals reached 891,0 million

- -wﬁr‘
-

manats. The share of overdue loans in

the loan portfolio in the end of 2012

was 6.2% compared with a decrease of
1% and reached 5.2% respectively. The
structure of the loan portfolio has changed
significantly in the past year. During this
period, the growth in the national currency
loans (29.5 %) outweighed the dynamics
of growth in foreign currency loans (3.5%)
for 8.5 times. As a result, the share of
loans in the local currency loan portfolio
reached 71%.

During this period banks continued
lending to the regions. As a result, the
credit growth in the regions increased by
30% compared to 2012 and exceeded
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2,1 milyard manati 6tmisdi. Burada da
manatla verilan kreditlor xarici valyuta ila
verilen kreditleri tistalomisdir. Bolgalarda
uzunmiiddatli kreditlor portfelinin asas
hissasini (75%) taskil etmigdir.

Umumilikda ilin maliyys géstericilarini
yilksok giymatlandirmak olar. Bank
sektorunun 2013-cii ilda alds etdiyi
manfaat 341,25 milyon manat tagkil
etmigdir. Vergi v dividendlar ddanildikdan
sonra banklarin xalis manfaati 267,57
milyon manata gatmigdir.

Foaliyyst gostaran 43 bankdan
2013-cii ilda 39 bank manfaatls, 4-ii isa
zararla iglamigdir. 2012-ci ilin yekunlari il
milgayisade 6tan il 6 bank manfaate nail
ola bilmigdir.

Aktivlarin keyfiyyatinin yiiksalmasi
vo kreditlar (izra ehtiyatlara ayirmalarin
hacminin azalmasi naticasinda kapitalin
galirliliyi (ROE) 2012-ci ille miigayisada
ahamiyyatli sakilds artaraq 11,7%-8
catrmigdir. Bank aktiviarinin galirliliyi (ROA)
il arzinda kicik da olsa, artim niimayis
etdirarak 1,5% taskil etmisdir.

2013-cii ilda bank sektorunun Gmumi
macmu kapitalinin hacmi 854,0 milyon
manat (33%) artaraq 3,427 milyard
manata ¢atmig, nizmnama kapitall ise
2,610 milyard manat tagkil etmigdir.

2013-cii ilda dlkenin bank sektorunun
kapitallagmasi 2012-ci ilin naticaleri ila
miigayisade 32,4% artaraq 3,39 milyard
manata gatmigdr.

Hesabat dovriinda Glka banklar
4,73 milyonu debet, 942 mini kredit
karti olmagla imumilikda 5,673
milyon aktiv 6danis kartlarina xidmat
gostarmigdir. Ovvalki ills miiqayiseda
kartlarin sayi 13,3% artmigdir. Plastik
kartlarin sayinin artinimasi ils yanag!
xidmeat infrastrukturunun, ATM va POS-
terminallar gabakalarinin geniglanmasi
labiiddiir. Bu istigamatda goriilan tedbirler
naticasinda 0lka arazisinde bankomatlarin
sayl 7% artinlaraq 2 422-ys gatdirilib.
Bankomatlarla yanagi miisterilera
33 285 POS-terminal xidmat gdstarir.
ilin yekunlarina gére ddenis kartlari ile
bankomat va POS-terminallar vasitasi ilo
hayata kegirilan smaliyyatlarin sayi 7,196
milyon, dvriyyasi 1,149 milyard manat
taskil etmigdir.

2.1 billion manats. The loans granted
in national currency were higher than
foreign currency loans here likewise.

In general, the financial indicators of
the year can be appreciated in value. The
profit gained by the banking sector in
2013 was 341.25 million manats. The net
profit of the banks after payment of taxes
and dividends reached 267.57 million
manats.

In 2013, 39 out of 43 active banks
operated with profit, while 4 banks
operated with loss. As compared to the
results of 2012, last year 6 banks gained
profit.

As compared to 2012 return on
equity (ROE) of the banks considerably
increased, reaching 11.7% due to
increase in asset quality and decrease
of the volume of loan provisions. During
the year the return on assets (ROA)
demonstrated though small, but 1.5% of
growth.

In 2013 the volume of aggregate
equity of the banking sector increased
by 854.0 million manats (33%) reaching
3.427 billion manats, while the authorized
capital constituted 2.610 billion manats.

In 2013 the capitalization of the
banking sector increased by 32.4% as
compared to the results of 2012 and
reached 3.39 billion manats.

During the accounting year banks of
the country issued 5.673 million active
payment cards in total: 4.73 million
debit cards and 942 thousand credit
cards. As compared to the previous
year, the number of cards has increased
by 13.3%. Expansion of the service
infrastructure including, ATM and POS
terminal networks will also effect in
growth of card issuing. As a result of the
measures taken in 2013, number of ATM
over the country has been increased
by 7% reaching 2.422. In addition to
ATM 33.285 POS terminals serve the
customers. According to the year-end
results the number of card transactions
via ATM and POS was 7.196 million and
the turnover made by cards equalled to
1.149 billion manats.
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According to the
Central Bank
information, the
banks issued loans
for 14.49 billion
manats during the
reporting period
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UMUMI MBLUMAT

Tam adi ACIQ SBHMDAR COMiYY8Ti “XALQ BANKI”

Qisa adi XALQ BANK

Yaranma tarixi 27 dekabr 2004-cii il

Lisenziya Azarbaycan Respublikasi Markazi Banki tarafindan verilmis

27 dekabr 2004-cii il tarixli 246 sayli lisenziya

Hilqugi Ginvani

Azarbaycan, Baki gah., AZ1065, in§aatgllar pr-ti, 221, mah.494

Telefon (+99412) 4044343

Faks (+99412) 4044334

Malumat markazi (012) 138

E-mail mail@xalgbank.az

URL www.xalgbank.az

Beynalxalq reyting Moody’s: B2/E+/NP (Stable outlook for long term ratings)
Uzvliik VISA International

MasterCard International

dmanatlarin Sigortalanmasi Fondu

Baki Fond Birjasi

Baki Banklararasi Valyuta Birjasi

Sahibkarliga Kdémak Milli Fondu

Azarbaycan ipoteka Fondu

SWIFT

Real Vaxt Rejiminda Banklararasi Hesablagmalar Sistemi (AZIPS)
Xirda Odaniglar (izre Hesablasma Kliring Sistemi (XOHKS)
Azarbaycan Banklar Assosiasiyasi

Azarbaycanda Amerikanin Ticarst Palatasi
Azerbaycan-Rusiya isgiizar Palatas

Iscilarin sayl, o ciimladan 520
Bas ofisda 201
Filiallarda 319

Filiallar 24

ATM 41

Ticarat mantaqoloari 118
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GENERAL DETAILS

Full name

OPEN JOINT-STOCK COMPANY XALQ BANK

Short name

XALQ BANK

Date of establishment

27 December 2004

License General license of the Central Bank of Azerbaijan N 246
Issued on 27 December 2004

Address 22 L, Inshaatchilar ave, Baku, AZ1065, Azerbaijan

Telephone (+99412) 4044343

Fax (+99412) 4044334

Call center (012) 138

E-mail mail@xalgbank.az

URL www.xalgbank.az

International rating Moody’s: B2/E+/NP (Stable outlook for long term ratings)

Membership VISA International

MasterCard International

Azerbaijan Deposit Insurance Fund

Baku Stock Exchange

Baku Interbank Currency Exchange

The National Entrepreneurship Support Fund
Azerbaijan Mortgage Fund

SWIFT

The Large-value Payment System (AZIPS)
The Retail Payment System ( XOHKS)
Azerbaijan Banks Association

American Chamber of Commerce in Azerbaijan
Azerbaijan-Russia Business Chamber

Staff, including 520
Head office 201
Branches 319

Branches 24

ATM’s 41

Merchants 118
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Xalg Bankin bank
bazarinda movaey

Market position of Xalg Bank

Xalq Bank aktivlarinin hacmina
gbro 2013-cii ilin sonuna olan
gostericilara asasen, 6lkanin an boylk
0zoal kommersiya universal bankidir
(imumi siralamada ikinci). Bank
demak olar ki, bank bazarinin biitiin
asas seqmentlarinda stabil olaraq lider
movaqelarda gararlasib. Xalq Bank genis
filial gabakasina malikdir va dlkanin feal
inkisaf edan bitln igtisadi zonalarinda
tomsil olunur. Bank tatbiq etdiyi yiiksok
biznes texnologiyalari, boyik maliyye
imkanlari, genig korporativ miistari
bazas, effektiv idaraetma va pesakar
menecmenti ile saciyyalandirilir.

Bankin kapitalizasiya saviyyasi,
kapitalin keyfiyyati v ehtiyat bazasi
yiksak giymatlandirilir. Aktivlarinin
keyfiyyati yiiksak olmagla yanasi, Xalq
Bank ham da galirlilik baximindan yaxs!
naticalara nail olmusdur. Bank likvidlik
daracasine gora bank sektorunun liderlori
sirasindadir.

Beynalxalq reyting

2013-cii ilde Moody’s investors
Service beynalxalq reyting agentliyi
Xalg Bankin uzunmiiddatli milli ve xarici
valyutada olan 6hdaliklar reytingini
B3-dan B2-dak yiiksaltmis va Bankin
E+ sarbast maliyye dayanighg (BFSR)
vo B3 Not Prime qisamiiddatli milli vo
xarici valyutada olan éhdaliklarini yeniden
tasdiglamisdir. Qeyd olunan reytinglar
stabil prognoza malikdirlar.

According to the financial results of
2013, Xalg Bank is the largest private
commercial bank in terms of assets
(second in the overall ranking). The Bank,
in almost all the major segments of the
banking market is in a stable leading
position. Xalq Bank has wide branch
network, representing in all economic zones
of the country. Bank is distinguished by high
technology applied to the Bank’s business,
its financial capabilities and extensive
corporate customer base and efficient and
professional management.

The Bank’s capitalization level, the
quality of capital and resource base is
highly evaluated. In addition to high quality
assets, profitability of the Bank also
promoted its to the leading positions in the
market. Another strong criteria of the Bank
successful activity is its high liquiditiy.

International rating

In 2010 Xalq Bank launched
cooperation with the international rating
agency Moody’s and received its first
rating «B3». 2013 year was marked by a
significant event, as Moody’s upgraded
Xalg Bank’s rating from «B3» to «<B2», E+
bank financial strength rating (BFSR). This
fact testifies to the Bank'’s reliability and
stability and will unquestionably strengthen
Xalg Bank’s position both in local market
and internationally as well as will allow
increasing shareholder value. Moody’s
notes that the upgrade reflects reevaluation
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Xalq Bank ragamlarla Xalq Bank in figures

Min Min Min Min Min Min
AZN AZN AZN AZN AZN AZN
Aktivler, o climladan Assets, including
Fiziki gaxslarin kreditlari 52,0 98,1 | 1329 Individual customers loans | 52.0 98.1 | 1329
Hiiqugi saxslerin 400,3 | 565,9 | 863,9 Corporate customers 400.3 | 565.9 | 863.9
kreditlari loans
Comi aktivlar 7152 | 854,6 | 1282,0 Total assets 7152 | 854.6 | 1282.0
Ohdaliklar, o ciimladen Liabilities, including
Fiziki saxslarin vesaitleri | 306,5 | 405,5 | 599,0 Individual customers funds | 306.5 | 405.5 | 599.0
Hliqugi saxslarin 113,5 | 118,2 | 249,8 Corporate customers 1135 | 1182 | 249.8
vasaitleri funds
Coami 6hdalikler 533,3 | 652,8 | 1065,1 Total liabilities 533.3 | 652.8 | 1065.1
Umumi kapital 181,9 | 201,8 | 216,9 Total capital 181.9 | 201.8 | 216.9
Nizamnama kapitall 140,5 | 169,1 | 183,7 Shareholder capital 140.5 | 169.1 | 183.7
Umumi galirlar 63,7 68,8 78,5 Total incomes 63.7 68.8 78.5
Faiz galirleri 59,0 60,9 77,2 Interest incomes 59.0 60.9 77.2
Digar galirlar 4,7 7,9 1,3 Other incomes 4.7 7.9 1.3
Umumi xarclar 38,0 54,2 64,4 Total expenses 38.0 54.2 64.4
Faiz xarclari 25,6 26,3 32,7 Interest expenses 25.6 26.3 32.7
Qeyri-faiz xarclari 12,4 27,9 31,7 Other expenses 12.4 27.9 31.7
Xalis menfaat | 257 | 146 | 140 | | Netprofit | 257 | 146 | 140

i11lik Hesabat 2013 / Annual Report 2013



22

Bankin perspektivlerini dayarlendiran
Moody’s tahlilgilari bayan edibler ki, pozitiv
prognoz Bankin bazarda mévqelarinin
mohkemlanmasi, aktivierin keyfiyyati,
yliksak kapitallasma saviyyasi kimi
amillara asaslanir va qargidaki 12-18
ay arzinda Bankin maliyya resurslarinin
diversifikasiyasi, aktivlarin yiiksak
keyfiyyati, galirlik ve kapitallagsma reytinga
daha da pozitiv tasir gostors bilar.

Aktivler

Xalg Bankin timumi aktiviari 2013-cii
ilde 50% artaraq 1,282 milyard manat
tagkil etmigdir. llin yekunlarina asasan Bank,
aktivlarinin hacmina gora 6zsl banklar
arasinda birinci movgeda gerarlagib. Bankin
aktivlarinin artim dinamikasi respublikanin
bank sektoru (izra an yiiksak gistaricilarden
biridir va Bankin ugurlu faaliyyatini bariz
ntimayis etdirir.

Hesabat dévriinda Glkanin bank
sektoru (izre Gimumi aktivlarin torkibinda
Xalq Bankin pay! 6,3% tagkil etmigdir.

Passivlar

Bankin passivlerinin strukturunda
depozitlarin payi 79,4% toskil edir. Otan il
mustari amanatlarinin hacmi 62% artaraq
848,8 milyon manat tagkil etmisdir. Bu
gostariciya gora Xalq Bank dlkenin ozal
banklar arasinda birinci yera yiiksalmisdir.
il arzinda depozit portfelinin artim siirati
mustarilarin Banka olan darin etibar ve
etimadina, elaca da Bankin bu istigamatda
ugurlu fealiyystina dalalst edir.

Kapital

Hesabat ilinda Xalq Bankin imumi
kapitali 7,5% artaraq 216,9 milyon manat
haddini kegmisdir. 2014-cti ilin avvalina
Bankin nizamnama kapitall 183,7 milyon
manat tagkil etmisdir ki, bu naticelara gora
ds Xalg Bank 6lksnin maliyya sektorunun
liderlari sirasindadir.

Manfast

Xalq Bankin galirlari 14% artaraq
2013-cii ilin yekunlarina ssasen 78,5
milyon manat tagkil etmigdir. Bankin
xarclari 2013-cii ilde 64,4 milyon manat
olmusdur. Xalq Bank 2013-cti ili balans
manfasti 17,8 milyon manat va xalis
manfaati 14,0 milyon manat ila basa
catdirdi.

of the Bank’s rating based on its strengths,
capitalization, assets quality and good
relations with customers, as well as further
improvement of certain indicators. According
to Moody’s, Xalq Bank strengthened its
position as the strongest private bank in
Azerbaijan. The upgrade was a logical result
of almost 10 years of work by a team of
professionals of Xalq Bank, a professional
approach to risk management and focus on
quality of customer service and technology
development.

Assets

The total assets of Xalq Bank increased
by 50% and amounted to 1.282 billion
manats in 2013. According to the annual
results, the Bank was ranked first among
private banks of the country in terms of
assets. The assets growth dynamics of
Xalg Bank in the banking sector is one of
the highest which clearly demonstrates the
Bank’s successful activity.

During the reporting period, Xalq Bank’s
share in the total assets of the banking
sector was 6.3 %.

Liabilities

The share of deposits in the Bank’s
total liabilities equaled to 79.4%. Last
year customer deposits increased by 62%
and amounted to 848.8 million manats.
According to this indicator, Xalq Bank was
ranked first among the country’s private
banks. During the last year, the Bank’s
deposit portfolio growth rate highlighted the
deep trust and confidence of customers, as
well as justified the successful activities in
this direction.

Capital

The total capital of Xalq Bank increased
by 7.5% and surpassed 216.9 million
manats in the reporting year. As of the
January, 2014 the shareholder funds
reached 183.7 million manats, which
justified Xalq Bank’s leading position among
local banks.

Profit

In 2013 Xalg Bank’s incomes rose by
14% and amounted to 78.5 million manats.
The Bank’s expenses in 2013 were 64.4
million manats. Xalq Bank finished the year
with the EBIT for 17.8 million manats, while
the net profit was 14.0 million manats.
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Korporativ biznes

Corporate Business

Son illar miistarilarinin arasinda fiziki
soxslarin sayinin dinamik artmasina
baxmayaraq korporativ miistarilera xidmat
Xalg Bankin asas foaliyyat istigamati
olaraq galmagdadir. Hesabat ilinda Bank
universallagma istiqgamatinda iri girkat
va tagkilatlar, elaca ds orta korporativ
mistarilardan ibarat migteri seqmentlarinin
bazar talablarina yonalik tadbirler hayata
kegirmigdir. Il arzinda Bank igtisadiyyatin
ananavi sahalarinda 6z mévgeyini
mohkemlandirmakle yanasi, ham da yeni
seqmentlorde faaliyyat gostaran sirkatlari de
miisteri gisminda calb etmisdir.

Taqdim edilan xidmeatlarin sayinin
artinimasi va servisin keyfiyyatinin
yiksaldilmasi istigamatinda gortilan todbirlor
Bankin miistari bazasinin bdylimasine sabab

Regardless the recent dynamic of
increase of individual customers, Xalq
Bank continues to prioritize service to
corporate customers. In the reporting
year, the Bank implemented a series
of actions focusing on the segments of
customers composed of large companies
and organizations, as well as medium
corporate clients. During the year, the
Bank not only reinforced its position in
the traditional areas of the economy, but
also engaged companies operating in new
segments as customers.

The measures undertaken to elevate
the number of offered products and
polish service quality contributed to the
increase of the customer portfolio, which
as a result allowed Xalq Bank to seize the

1916

1617

1261

986
2010 2011

2012

Korporativ mistarilarin sayi
Number of corporate customers

249,8

201,6

2010

113,5
118,2

2011 2012

2013

Korporativ mustarilerin manatlari (min AZN)
Corporate deposits (min AZN)
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The Bank’s share

of loans in the local
banking market in
2013 increased by
3.3% and comprised
10.9%.

olmusdur ki, bu da 6z novbasinda Xalq
Banka 6lkanin Gzal banklar arasinda aparici
movqge tutmaga imkan vermisdir. Oten il
arzinda Bankin xidmat gostardiyi korporativ
miigtarilarin sayi 49,8% artaraq 1 916 nafer
tagkil etmisdir.

Korporativ kreditiasma

Biznesin kreditlagmasi Bankin
faaliyyatinin prioritet istigamatlarindan
biri olaraq galir. Mahz bu sahada inkisaf
potensiall igtin imkanlar daha bariz
miisahida olunur. il arzinda kredit portfelinin
inkisaf dinamikasi da bu milahizani
tasdiglayir. Bank diversifikasiyall kreditlasma
strategiyasina sadiq galaraq 2013-cii ilda
sonaye, geyri-istehsal, xidmat, informasiya,
rabita va ticarst daxil olmagla igtisadiyyatin
an muxtalif sahalarini maliyyslagdirmigdir.
2013-cii ilin yekunlarina gora korporativ
miistarilarin kredit portfeli 2012-ci ila
nisbatan 52,7% artaraq 863,9 milyon manat
taskil etmisdir. Bankin kredit portfelinde
korporativ mistarilarin pay ise 86,5%
olmusdur.

Bank bazarinda Xalq Bankin kreditlar
lizra bazar payl 2013-cii ilds 3,3% artaraq,
10,9% taskil etmisdir.

Korporativ mustarilerdan

calb olunmus vasaitler

Yola saldigimiz ilda korporativ passivier
portfeli shamiyyatli deracada artmigdir.
2013-cii ilin sonuna hiiqugi sexslardan calb
olunan vasaitlar avvalki ilin gostericilarina

leading position among country’s private
banks. Over the past year the number

of corporate customers of the Bank has
increased for 49.8% and constituted
1916.

Corporate loans

Business loans remain a priority
among the Bank’s operations. The
opportunities for potential development
are particularly obvious in this field. Thus,
the development dynamics of the loan
portfolio throughout the year has also
testified to this conclusion. By adhering
to diversified loan strategy in 2013 the
Bank has financed various areas of
the economy including manufacturing,
production, service, communication,
trade and others. According to the results
of 2013, the corporate customers’
loan portfolio has increased by 52.7%
and reached 863.9 million manats in
comparison with figures from 2012. The
Bank’s corporate clients’ portfolio share
amounted to 86.5%. The Bank’s share of
loans in the local banking market in 2013
increased by 3.3% and comprised 10.9%.

Deposits of corporate customers
Last year, the corporate liabilities
portfolio increased significantly, whereas

the funds collected from legal entities
by the end of 2013 doubled the previous
year’s figures and reached 249.8 million
manats. The dynamic increase of the
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nishatda iki dafa artaraq 249,8 milyon
manat tagkil etmisdir. Maliyya gdstaricilarinin
dinamik artimi mugtari bazasinin
nazeracgarpacaq sakilds geniglanmasi

ile misayiat olunub. Biznesin migyasinin
geniglanmasi korporativ mgsterilarin
amealiyyatlar (izra galirlarin ahamiyyatli
artimini gartlandirib. Bu naticalar bank
sektoru iizre orta gostericileri tstalayir ve
miistari-sirkatlarin Banka darin inamini,
mohkam etibarini nimays etdirir.

Senadli smaliyyatlar

Bankimizin ticaratin maliyyalagdirilmasi
sahasinds alda etdiyi naticalor xiisusi
diqgats layiqdir — bu sahada amaliyyatlarin
hacmi texminan 1,5 dafa artmigd. Biz
aminik ki, gelacakda da migtarilarimizin
miixtalif mal va avadanliglarin idxal Gizre
ticari amaliyyatlar zamani Xalq Bank etibarli
tarefdas gisminda ¢ixis edacak. Burada
vacib olan, miistarilera ticari smaliyyatlar
Uzra daha sarfali va gevik gartlar taklif
edan birinci daracali mixbir banklarin
madvcudlugudur.

2013-cii il arzinda akkreditiviar va
beynalxalq zemanatler (izre sovdalagmalarin
hacmi hesabatin naticalerina gora avvalki illa
milgayiseda 1,5 dafa artaraq texminan 60,0
milyon ABS dollar tagkil etmigdir.

Bank igtisadiyyatin biitiin sahaleri
Uzra iri korporativ musgtarilara ticaratin
maliyyslagdirilmasi tizra xidmat
gostarmakda davam etmigdir. Hesabat
ilinda ticaratin maliyyalasdirilmasi sahasinda

40.05% [t

Industrial sector

Tikinti sahasi
30.92%
Digar geyri-istehsal va xidmat sahalari

Construction
15.97%
. Other non-industrial and service sector

7.46% informasiya va Rabita
. 0 Information and telecommunication

0 Kand tesarriifati
2 97 /0 Agriculture

0 Ticarat
2 36 /0 Commerce

0 Nagliyyat
O 26 /0 Transport

Markazi va baladiyys idareetma organlarina
Central and municipal governments

0.01%

Kredit portfeli sahalar izra
Credit portfolio across different areas

financial indicators was followed by a
substantial enlargement of the customer
database. The expansion of the scope

of the business stipulated an increase
of profit from corporate customers
operations. These results outweigh the
average indicators in the bank sector
and display a profound trust and solid
confidence of the corporate customers
towards the Bank.

Documentary transactions

Xalq Bank’s accomplishments in
trade finance are attention worthy, as
volumes in this field increased by 1.5
times. We are confident that Xalq Bank
will continue to be a reliable partner for
our customers in their future commercial
transaction with various imports of goods
and equipment. Partnership of top-notch
correspondent banks capable to provide
favorable and flexible terms to clients for
their trade transactions play a pivotal role
in this case. The volume for international
guarantees and letters of credit increased
as per report results and constituted 60.0
million USD with a 1.5 time increase.
Bank continued to finance large corporate
customers’ trade operations in all areas
of the economy. During the reporting year,
leading industries in financed trade were
trade and construction. In addition in 2013
year documentary transactions portfolio
was expanded due to new clients dealing
with distribution business.
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ticarat va tikinti sahalarinds foaliyyat
gostaran girkatlar 0n siralarda olmusdur.
2013-cii ilds sanadli amaliyyatlarin
portfeli distribyusiya ile maggul olan yeni
mustarilarimizin hesabina artmigdir.

omak haqqi ve korporativ

kartlar

2013-cii ilds Xalg Bank maas kartlan
layihalari gergivasinda korporativ mustarilarle
foal amakdaghgini stirdiirmiigdiir. Hesabat
dovrii arzinds Bank miixtslif miisssise va
taskilatlarin amakdaslari Gigtin 5000-dak kart
buraxmigdir. Maas kartlan izra amaliyyatlarin
dovriyyssi il arzinda 43% artaraq 60,0 milyon
manata ¢atmigdir. Bankin ATM sabakalarinin
birlagdirilmasi hagda “Pasa Bank”la
imzalanmig saziga asasen maag kartlarinin
sahiblari dlka tizre 50-dan ¢ox bankomatdan
guizastla istifada etmak imkani gazanmiglar.

Son illar Xalq Bankin Visa ve MasterCard
Business korporativ kartlari genis
populyarliq gazanir. Bu kartlardan asasen
isguizar sefarlar zamani istifada olunmasini
nazera alaraq ezamiyyatler zamani zaruri
olan mahsullardan ibarat x(isusi paket
yaradilmigdir. Bu paketa kredit karti, diinyanin
biitiin hava limanlarinin ViP-zallarina girig
izni veran Priority Pass kart, internet Bank,
SMS-malumatlandirma xidmatlari daxildir.
Bu Kkartlara talab boytyiir va 2013-cii ilds
korporativ kartlar tizra amaliyyatlarin Gmumi
dovriyyasi 2 dafadan ¢ox artmigar.

Korporativ sahanin inkisaf perspektivlari

dlda edilen ugurlarin sebabi dogru
secilmis inkigaf strategiyasi ile baglidir. Bu
strategiyaya asasan Bank takca kreditlasma
deyil, tranzaksiya biznesi - biznes
proseslarinin idaraedilmasini asanlagdiran
xidmeatlarin, elaca da hesablagma-kassa
xidmatlari (izerinda fokuslagir. Korporativ
sektorda Xalq Bank alverigli xidmatlari, sarfali
tarifleri ila segilir ve mustarilar tgiin rahat
maliyyas milassisasi olaraq taninir. Bu sahads
bizim strategiyamiz yeni texnologiyalarin
tatbiqi, migtarilarle gevik minasibatler
va ig adamlar Ggiin rahat xidmat ve
mahsullarin taklifina asaslanir. 2014-cii
ilda korporativ mustarilarle miinasibatlarda
uzunmiiddatli terafdashgin asaslarinin
mohkamlandirilmasi prioritet secilib. Xalq
Bank kigik sahibkarlardan boyik biznes
strukturlarinadak biitiin mistarilar tiglin rahat
va alverigli universal bank va etibarll tarafdags
gisminda inkisafini davam etdiracak.

Salary and business cards

In 2013, Xalq Bank continued its
salary cards’ projects with corporate
customers. In the reporting year the Bank
issued more than 5000 salary cards.
Volume of transactions made with salary
cards increased by 43% and reached
more than 60.0 million manats.

ATM alliance with Pasha Bank gave a
chance to salary cardholders of both of
banks to benefit from use of the joint ATM
network numbering more than 50 ATMs
across the country.

Last years, Xalq Bank also succeeded
in issuing of Visa and MasterCard
Business cards which become very
popular among corporate customers.
These cards are mainly used for business
trips and that is why we prepared
customized packages of products which
can be useful during a trip. Owners of
these packages may benefit from MC/Visa
credit cards, Priority Pass, allowing access
to VIP-lounges in airports all over the
world, Internet Banking, SMS-notification
services. Doubled volume turnover made
by these cards in 2013 confirms their
growing demand.

Prospects for the corporate business

development

The rationale for accomplished
success of Xalg Bank is explained by the
right choice of the development strategy,
in other words the Bank tried not to
focus only on lending transactions, but
reinforced its business transactions via
facilitating business process management
services, as well as cash management
services. Xalg Bank is a reputable Bank
among the corporate businesses known
for its affordable services, competitive
rates and professional consulting services
for customers. Qur strategy in this field
is established on our network expansion,
agile customer service and offering
of convenient service and products
to corporate customers. The chosen
priority for 2014 is to strengthen existing
and establishment of new long-term
partnership relationships with corporate
clients. Xalq Bank will continue to develop
its brand as a reliable partner and
comprehensive Bank with convenient
service to all customers from small to
large businesses.
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Porakonda biznes

Retall Business

2013-cii ilda Xalq Bank parakanda
bazarda xeyli ugurlara imza atmigdir.
Oten il garsida duran vezifalar — faal
milstarilarin sayinin artiriimasi, Bankin
riteyl sabakasinin genislandiriimasi, fiziki
soxslarin yerlagdirdiyi talabli smanatlarin
hacminin goxalmasi ve kredit portfelinin
artinimasindan ibarat olmusdur.
Sadalanan istiqamatlar izre garsiya
qoyulan naticeleri slda etmays miiveffaq
olmusug.

Umumilikda fiziki sexslerin bank
bazari ti¢in 2013-cii il olduqca ciddi
miisbat dinamika ile alamatdar olmusdur.
dhalinin kreditlasmasi, asasan ipoteka,
istehlak ve nagd kreditlor, kredit kartlari
istigamatleri inkisaf dévriini yasamisdir.

Kreditlagma di¢lin Bank fiziki
soxslardan calb etdiyi vasaitlerdan aktiv,
eyni zamanda semoarali istifada etmisdir.
il arzinda istehlak kreditleri portfelinin
artimi 44% taskil etmigdir.

Otan il halli vacib olan vazifslarden
biri Bankin fardi msterilarinin sayinin
artinimasi idi. Bu yonds do miisbat
naticalara nail olunmusdur. Bels ki,
2013-cii il arzinda miistari bazasi iki
dafadan ¢ox artaraq texminan 45,0 min
haddina ¢atmigdir.

Hamginin filiallarin faaliyystinin
effektivliyi, taklif olunan xidmat ve
mahsullarin keyfiyyati va misterilerin
rahath§ daim diggat merkazinds
olmusdur. Xalq Bank hesabat dovriinde
brendin genis taninmasini tamin etmak
va satig hacminin artirnimasi magsadi ile
miixtalif aksiya va kampaniyalar kegirmis,
miistarilara xidmat gdsteran amakdaslar

In 2013 the Bank has achieved
considerable success in the retail market.
The main objectives set for the last year
were to enhance the number of active
clients, to expand the Bank’s branch
network, to increase volume of demand
deposits placed by individuals and to
enlarge the loan portfolio. We managed
to achieve the set results on the above
mentioned directions.

In general, the banking market of
individuals was distinguished by a
very positive dynamics in 2013. Loans
to individuals, particularly, mortgage,
consumer and cash loans, credit cards
were the developing directions.

The Bank actively and effectively used
the funds attracted from individuals for
loan issuing. During the year consumer
loan portfolio increased by 44%.

One of the important tasks for
the Bank to be resolved the last year
was to increase the number of private
customers. The Bank achieved positive
results in the issue as well by increasing
the customer base more than twice
reaching the level of almost 45.0
thousands.

In addition, the efficiency of branch
activity, quality of offered services and
products and convenience of customers
have been always in the focus of
attention. In order to improve the brand
awareness and increase of sales volume
in the reporting period, Xalq Bank held
various promoting campaigns, organized
trainings for the front office employees,
implemented several new products
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By the end of the
reporting period the
number of individuals
served by the Bank
reached 44 691
clients

44691

25397
20748

14428

2010 2011

Fardi mUsterilerin sayi

2012

Numbers of retail customers

405,5

270.9 307,3

2010 2011 2012 2013

Fiziki saxslarin depozit portfeli (min AZN)
Retail deposits (min AZN)

tictin treyninglar tagkil etmis, elektron ve
mobil xidmatlar da daxil olmagla bir sira
yeni mahsullar tatbiq etmis, cari xidmat va
mahsullari isa takmillagdirmigdir.

2013-cli ilde Bankin xidmat etdiyi fiziki
saxslarin sayi artaraq hesabat dovriniin
sonuna 44 691 mustari tagkil etmigdir. Bank
mustarilara tam spektr bank mahsullari, 0
ctimladan amanatlerin gabulu, kreditlasma,
hesablagma-kassa xidmeatlari, depozit
seyflorinin icarasi, plastik kartlar, tacili pul
kogtirmalari va onlayn xidmatlari teqdim
edir.

Kreditlagma

Fardi gaxslarin kreditlagsmasi Xalq
Bankin biznes inkigafi strategiyasinin
asas istigamatlorindan biridir ve bu
sahaya boylk shamiyyat verilir.

2013-cu il arzinds fardi mustarilara
verilan kreditlerin hacmi 34,8 milyon
manat artaraq, 2014-cd ilin yanvar ayinin
1-na 132,9 milyon manat tagkil etmigdir
(Gmumi kredit portfelinin 13%-i). Xalq

including mobile and e-services, and
modified some existing ones.

By the end of the reporting period the
number of individuals served by the Bank
reached 44 691 clients. The Bank provides
its customers with a wide range of bank
products including saving deposits, cash
and settlement services, safe deposit
boxes, plastic cards, money transfers and
online services.

Lending

Loans to individuals are one of the
main directions of the Bank’s business
development strategy and this area is of
great significance.

The amount of loans issued to individual
customers has increased by 34.8 milllon
manats during 2013 and reached 132.9
milllon manats by the 1st January 2014
(13% of the total loan portfolio). Xalq Bank
offers various consumer lending programs
to meet demand and requirements of
different targets of population.
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Bank istehlak kreditlagmasinin muixtalif
programlarini taklif edir ki, bu da 6z
novbasinda shaliya talabatini ve digar
zaruri ehtiyaclanini gargilamaga imkan
verir. Bank terafindan fiziki saxslara
verilmig kreditlarin tarkibinda istehlak
kreditlarinin hacmi 18,27 milyon manat
(fiziki gaxslara verilmig macmu kreditlarin
texminan 13,76%), avtomobil kreditlarinin
hacmi 24,7 milyon manat (fiziki saxslara
verilmig macmu kreditlarin 18,58%) taskil
etmigdir. Bank ipoteka kreditlagmasi
sahasindae faalligini daha da artirmigdir.
Dovlat ipoteka programindan slave olaraq
Bank 0z vesaitleri hesabina, olduqgca
alverigli sartlerla ipoteka kreditlari

toklif edir. Hesabat ili srzinda ipoteka
kreditlarinin hacmi 62,4 milyon manat
(fiziki gaxslara verilmig macmu kreditlarin
46,95%) taskil etmigdir.

Hamginin fiziki sexslarin kredit
portfelinin yiksak keyfiyystini qeyd
etmak lazimdir: 2014-ci ilin svvalina
olan malumata gora fiziki sexslarin kredit
portfelinda olan problemli kreditlarin pay!
4,07% taskil etmisdir.

Fiziki saxslerin depozit portfeli

Cari ilde middatli depozitlarin
hacmi 2012-ci ilin analoji gostaricisi il
miigayisada 48% artaraq ilin sonunda
599,0 milyon manat tagkil etmisdir. Fiziki
soxslarin depozit portfelinin hacmina gora
Xalq Bank 6lkenin bank sektorunda ikinci
movaqeys yiyalonib. Miitexassislorimiz
yeni amanatgilari calb etmak uglin depozit
mahsullarinin gesidini geniglandirmak,
onlarin alverigliliyinin, mistari tiglin
cazibadarliginin artinlmasi istigamatinds
daim caligirlar. 9manatgilarimiz 0z

Fardi mstarilarin kreditlarin strukturu
Retail loans structure

46.95% @ Ipoteka
Mortgage

18.58% Avtomobil alinmasina

Car loans

istehlak kreditlari
Consumer loans

13.76% @

0.71% @

Kredit kartlari
Credit cards

20.0% @ Diger kreditlor

Other loans

18.27 million manats (13.76%) of
total loans issued to individuals relates
to consumer loans; 24.7 million manats
(18.58%) is a share of car loans.

The Bank has increased its activity in
the mortgage loan sector, implementing in
addition to the State Mortgage Program,
its own mortgage product with the most
advantageous conditions. The mortgage
portfolio of Xalq Bank equalled to 62.4
million manats, almost 46.95% of the total
loan portfolio of individual customers.

The other key note should be
mentioned here is the high quality of
the loans issued to individuals. As of the
beginning of 2014 NPLs made only 4.07%
of the total portfolio.

Saving deposits

In 2013 saving deposits has grown by
48% compared to 2012 and reached 599.0
million manats at the end of the year.

Xalg Bank holds the second place
in the banking sector of the country
according to the deposit portfolio of
individuals. Our specialists constantly
work on expansion of deposit product
range, the improvement of their suitability
and attractiveness for the customers
in order to attract new depositors. We
present different types of deposits
starting from 3 months term with very
flexible conditions, allowing customers to
add amount over the term and collecting
accrued interest on convenient for
holder time. In addition, deposits owners
are offered a free credit card on very
advantageous conditions. Xalq Bank is
an authorized agent of the State Deposit
Insurance Fund; deposits placed by
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istaklarine uygun olaraq amanatlarini li¢
aydan baglayaraq miixtalif miiddatlara
rasmilagdira, hesablanmig faizlari isa
onlara rahat olan gartlerls gétura bilarlar.
dlava olaraq amanat sahiblarina gox
sorfali gartlarla kredit karti taqdim

olunur. Xalg Bank Dovlat @manatlarin
Sigortalanmasi Fondunun miivakkilidir va
yerlagdirilan amanatlar Fondun gartlarina
uygun sigortalanir.

Plastik kartlar

Xalg Bank VISA International va
MasterCard International beynalxalq
6danis sistemlarinin Gizviidiir. Umumilikde
hesabat ilinin sonuna Bank tersfinden
9,0 mina yaxin bank karti buraxilmig,
ahalinin istifadasinds olan aktiv kartlarin

say! isa 13,0 mina yaxindir. Hesabat

ilinds Bank plastik kartlardan istifade
infrastrukturunun funksionalliginin
artinimasina xisusi diggat yetirmisdir.
Belo ki, paytaxt ve bolgsleri shata

edan filial va bankomat gabakalari,
habela “Mobil Bank” va “internet Bank”
sistemlari vasitssile mstarilarimiz mobil
rabita operatorlarinin, internet va kabel
televiziyasi xidmatlari provayderlarinin,
gahar telefonlari, kommunal ve sigorta
xidmatlarindan istifada haglarini 6days
bilerlar.

Xalg Bank bank kartlari sahiblarina
“Card to Card” (bir bank kartindan
digarina tacili pul kdgtrmaleri), “Cash
by Code” (kart sahibi olmayan sexslara
kart vasitasila pul kogtirmalari), “Cash
to Any Card” (banka galmadan ve kart

customers of Xalq Bank are guaranteed by
the government.

Plastic cards

Xalq Bank is a member of Visa
International and MasterCard International
payment systems. In general, during the year,
the Bank issued approximately 9.0 thousand
cards; total number of the active cards
used by Xalg Bank’s customers equaled to
about 13.0 thousand. During the accounting
year the Bank paid special attention to
the improvement of functionality of cards’
infrastructure. So, our cardholders can
make payments for mobile services, utilities,
internet and cable TV providers, insurance
and others using branch and ATM network
covering almost the country, as well as via
Mobile Banking and Internet Banking.

The Bank launched service facilities for
cardholders like Card-to-Card (instant money
transfer from one bank card to another),
Cash-by-Code (money transfer to non-
cardholder customer), Cash-to-Any-Card
(cash to any card via ATM without card itself),
SMS-notification (instant message about
details of card transactions to cardholder
mobile). To expand services via ATM Xalq
Bank started developing Cash-In ATM
network, allowing customers to support
bank card account regardless of the Bank
operating mode.

As in previous year, the Bank actively
participated in marketing campaigns
organized by VISA and MasterCard and other
partners intended to stimulate issuing of
cards and growth of non-cash transactions’
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olmadan Cash-In tipli bankomat vasitasila
istanilen kart hesabina nagd pul madaxil
etmak imkani), “SMS xabardarliq” (bank
karti uzra aparilan biitin emaliyyatlar
hagqinda sms-malumatlarin kart sahibinin
mobil telefonuna gondarilmasi) kimi
xidmeatlar taklif etmigdir. Bu xidmatlarin
rahathginin tamin edilmasi Gglin
“Cash-In” tipli bankomat gabakasinin
formalagdinimasina baglanilib. Adi
bankomatlardan fargli olaraq bu avadanliq
miigterinin kart hesabina nagd vesaitler
daxil etmaya imkan verir.

ovvalki illards oldugu kimi Bank
kart emissiyasini stimullagdirmag va
nagdsiz ameliyyatlarin dévriyyasini
artirmag, elace de miigtarilarin loyalligini
yilksaltmak magsadi il VISA v
MasterCard beynalxalq ddanis
sistemlari va digar tarafdaglarin tagkil
etdiyi marketing kampaniyalarinda faal
istirak etmisdir.

Onlayn ddaniglar

Parakanda biznesin daha bir vacib olan
istiqgamatlarindan biri — elektron xidmat ve
mahsullarin tatbiqi ve tekmillagdiriimasina
yonalib. Bu sahads asas magsadimiz
mustarilerimiz tigtin miasir, rahat ve
tehllikasiz xidmat va mahsullarin
yaradilmasidir.

Bu giin Xalq Bankin mistarileri
Mobil Bank, internet Bank va Bill Pay
onlayn 6dema sistemi vasitosi ilo
miixtslif kommunal va digar Gdaniglari
hayata kegira bilarlar. 2013-cl il arzinda
miigtariler tgiin mixtalif stimullasdirici
lotereyalar, hadiyysli aksiyalar kegirilmigdir
ki, naticada ddaniglarin hacmi bir
neca dafe artmig, onlayn xidmatlarin
istifadacilarinin sayi isa 1000 nafari
otmigddir.

Elektron bankgiligin biitiin kanallar
vasitasila xidmatlarin 6danis hacminin
miisbat artim tendensiyasi ilk névbads
zamanin va muasir mistarinin talabi
asasinda tatbiq edilan yiiksak texnoloji,
rahat va tohliikesiz servislor sayasinda
mimkun olmugdur. dvvalki illardan farqli
olaraq 2013-c ilds bu saha miintazam
olaraq inkigaf etdirilir v amaliyyatlarin
sayl, elace do dovriyya baximindan stabil
artim musahida olunur.

Hesabat ilinda Bank, 0z ig rejimindan
asil olmayan va miistarilars 0z

turnover, as well as increase of customer
loyalty.

Online payments

Another important direction of the
retail business is implementation and
improvement of e-services. Our main
objective is to create modern, flexible and
secured area allowing customers to be
served comfortably regardless of the Bank
operating mode.

Today our customers can make utilities
and other payments using Mobile Bank,
Internet Bank and Bill Pay systems. The
last year we launched several promo
campaigns, including lottery and auctions,
resulted in a several-fold increased
turnover; the number of online service
users passed 1,000.

Positive growth trend of sales volume
via different channels was first of all due to
highly technological, convenient and safe
services offered by demand of modern
customers. Unlike the previous years this
area has been steadily developing in 2013
and stable growth is being observed in the
number of transactions, as well as in the
turnover.

During the accounting year the
Bank started implementation of a fully
functional Internet Banking module
independent of the Bank’s work regime
and allowing customers to fulfil all
banking operations. The internet
banking service catalogue will include
both international and domestic money
transfer transactions, opening and
replenishment of savings deposits,
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hesablarini idare etmakds mahdudiyyat
goymayan, tam funksional internet Bank
modulunun tatbigina bagladi.

internet Bankin xidmatlar kataloguna
ham 6lka xaricina, ham da 6lke daxiline
hayata kegirilan pul kdgtirmalari iizra
amaliyyatlar daxil olacag. internet Bank
vasitasi ile mustarilarimiz tiglin yeni smanat
hesabi agmag, movcud smanati artirmag,
plastik kart sifarig etmak, kredit 6damak,
yeni kredit tigiin sifarig arizesi vermak
mimkiindr.

Hamginin mixtalif mobil slavalarin
yaradilmasi mugtarilara fargli cihazlarda
faydal malumatlari interaktiv formada
gabul etmak va rahat sakilda Bankin
xidmatlarindan yararlanmag imkani
yaradacagq.

Bizim saylarimiz uzaqdan xidmat
etmanin takca funksionalliga gora deyil,
ham de miistarilerin xidmatlerimizdan
istifada edarkan darin mamnunlug
gazanmasina yonalib.

Parakanda biznesin inkisaf

perspektivlari

Parakanda satiglarin naticalari bu
sahada olan bdyiik potensialdan xabar
verir. Qarsidaki ilda bizim asas vazifelarimiz
mustari bazasinin geniglandirilmasi,
onlarin segmentlagdirilmasi, mistari
segmentlarinin talablerina uygun yeni
mahsullarin yaradilmasindan ibarat olacag.
Alternativ satig kanallarinin artiriimasi, yeni
texnologiyalarin tatbigi maselaleri boyiik
Onam daglyacaq.

2014-c ilda fiziki sexslarin
kreditlagmasina xisusi diggat
yetirilacak. Bizim prognozlarimiza gora
bu seqmentda bazarin aktiv inkigafi
davam edacak, ve biz bu sahada yiiksak
naticalar slda etmakda gararliyiq.

Kros-satiglarin geniglanmasi, elaca
da taqdim olunan xidmatin keyfiyystinin
artinimasi parakanda biznesin inkigafinin
mih(im amillaridir.

2014-cii ilda Xalq Bank garsiya
goyulan vazifalarin halli yolunda
kompleks tadbirlar hayata kegirilmakla
ugur gazanmaga calisacaq.

ordering plastic card, application for new
and repayment of existing loans etc.
Another direction which we intend
to develop is the creation of mobile
applications; the customers will enable
to use our services via mobiles in a more
convenient mode.
Our efforts are directed to ensure
not only the functionality of the remote
services, but also the profound satisfaction
of the customers using our services.
Comfort and convenience are the main
criteria motivating the customers to
connect the Bank via a mobile. For the
Bank the most important things in these
services are high-tech and secured
platforms and modern and flexible
interfaces.

Prospects of retail business

The results of retail sales indicate
the great potential in this sector. Our
main tasks in the forthcoming years will
be increase of customer base, clients’
segmentation and launching new products
in accordance with market demand.
Implementation of alternative sales
channels and new technologies will be of
high importance.

In 2014 special focus will be on loans
to individuals. According to our forecast
active development of this niche of the
market will continue and we intend to
enhance our market share.

Expansion of cross selling as well as
improvement of quality of provided services
are the key indicators of the retail business
development.

In 2014 Xalg Bank will endeavour to
successfully implement the comprehensive
measures in a planned manner in order to
achieve the set goals.
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Personalin inkisafl

Staff policy

Yarandigi giinden daim inkigaf eden
vo yeni ugurlara imza atan Xalq Bankin
alda etdiyi nailiyyatlari diizglin biznes
strategiyasinin mantiqi naticesidir. Hoyata
kegirilan ugurlu siyasatin kontekstinde
kadrlarin segilmasi, hazirlanmasi va idars
edilmasi boylik 6nem dasiyir.

Bels ki, isa gabul prosesi, savadl
kadrlarin seg¢ilmasi v onlarin diizgin
yerlagdirilmasi igi takmillagdiriimigdir.
Bundan alava, Bank amakdaslarinin
pesakarliq saviyyasinin daim artiriimasi
masalalari 2013-cli ilde da kadr
siyasatinin asas istigamatlarindan biri
olmusdur.

Umumilikda 2013-cii ilds Bankda 520
nafar isci, 0 climladan, 201 nafer Bag
ofisda, 319 nafar iga filiallarda ¢aligirdi.

Hamisa oldugu kimi Xalq Bank bu
il da ise genc miitaxassislerin calb
edilmasina Ustiinlik vermis va 2013-cii
il arzinda iga gabul edilmig yeni iggilarin
85%-ni 35 yasa gadar olan gancler taskil
etmisdir. Umumilikda isa Bankda caligan
miitaxassislarin 236 nafari 20-30 yas,
157 nafari 30-40 yas, 92 naferi 40-50
yas daracasinda, 35 nafari isa 50 yagdan
yuxari olanlardr.

Onu da geyd etmak istardik ki, Bank
kollektivinin 407 nafari, yani 78%-i
birbasa bank isi il masgul olan ali tahsilli
miitaxassislardir.

Bank staji 10 ildan yuxari olan
amakdaglarin sayi 20 nafar, 5 ilden 10
iladak 82 nafar, 5 iladak olanlar isa 358
nafar tagkil edir.

Achievements of Xalq Bank that
has been developing and gaining
new successes since the day of its
establishment is the logical outcome of
a sound business strategy. Selection,
training and management of the personnel
in the context of successful policy being
implemented are of great importance.

So, the employment process, selection

of educated personnel and their correct
placement has been improved. In addition,
continuous improvement of proficiency level
of the Bank personnel and other similar
issues has been one of the main directions
of the staff policy this year.

In general in 2013 the Bank had 520
employees - 201 in the Head Office and 319
in branches.

This year Xalq Bank prioritised the
attraction of young talented specialists as
well and 85% of new employees hired in
2013 were the young people at the age
below 35. In general, 236 employees of the
Bank are 20-30 years old, 157 employees
are 30-40 years old, 92 employees are 40-
50 years old and 35 employees are above
50 years old people.

Another important factor should be
mentioned here is that 407, i.e. 78% of
the Bank staff and all employees directly
involved in banking operations are Ms
Degree specialists.

The banking experience of the Bank
personnel is as follows: 20 employees
have more than 10 years experience, 82
employees - from 5 to 10 years and 358
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0z inkigaf dinamikas! ils farglenan
Xalq Bank bu ig ili arzinda da
amakdaglarinin bilik saviyyasinin
yiiksaldilmasi, onlarin daim inkisaf eden
va dayisan camiyyatla ayaglasa bilmalari
tctn mixtalif konfranslarda, treyning
va seminarlarda, forum ve sargilorda
igtirakini temin etmisdir. ister dlke
daxilinds, istarsa do dlke xaricinda bir
il arzinda bir sira tahsil miiassisasi il
amakdasliq edarak yiiksak nailiyystlar
alda etmigik. il arzinde amakdasliq
etdiyimiz motaber tahsil markezlari
sirasinda asagidakilar geyd etmak olar:

¢ MSB Events

e Adam Smith Conferences

¢ Fleming Europe Conferences
¢ Moscow Business School

¢ Biznes Format

¢ Moody’s Corporation

e Deloitte Egitim Hizmetleri Sti. Ltd.
e Oxford Training

e AcademyTech

¢ Prometheus Consultant Group
e (Cisco Live

¢ The P-World

Bankin isgilari yuxanda adigakilan
markazlerda yiyalendiklari biliklardan
samarali istifade etmalari va 0z iglarinda
tatbiq etmaleri Bankin inkisafinda oz(ini
aclg-askar gostarmakdadir.

Hamisa oldugu kimi Bankin kadr
siyasati novbati illar arzinda da daim inkisaf
etdirilacek va tekmillagdirilacakdir.

-~ A i~

employees - up to 5 years of banking
experience.

Xalq Bank, which is distinguished by
its development dynamics, ensured the
participation of its employees in various
conferences, trainings and workshops,
forums and exhibitions in order to improve
their level of knowledge so that they could
keep pace with continuously developing
and changing society. We have achieved
high results by cooperating with a number
of educational institutions both in the
country and abroad. The following are
examples of the educational centres we
have cooperated during the year:

¢ MSB Events

¢ Adam Smith Conferences

¢ Fleming Europe Conferences
¢ Moscow Business School

¢ Business Format

¢ Moody’s Corporation

e Deloitte Egitim Hizmetleri Sti. Ltd.
e QOxford Training

¢ AcademyTech

¢ Prometheus Consultant Group
e Cisco Live

¢ The P-World

Development of the Bank is the clear
indication that the employees of the Bank
efficiently use and apply the knowledge
gained in above mentioned centres.

The Bank will continue development
and improvement the staff policy in the
following years.
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Infrastrukturun genislendiriimasi

Expansion of infrastructure

2013-cii ilde Xalq Bank filial sati
sabakasinin aktiv geniglenmasini davam
etdirdi. Hesabat dévril erzinda daha 3
regional filialin agilmasi ila filial gabakasina
daxil olan satig ndqtalarinin sayini 24-o
catdirdi. Bu filiallardan 6-si paytaxtda, 18-i
isa bolgslards faaliyyat gostorir.

Qabul edilmis strategiyaya asasan
Bank galacekda da satig sabakasini
genislendirmak va Olke (izra filiallarin sayini
artirmaq niyyatindadir. Har hansi bir bolgads
filialin agilmasi haqda garar verilarkan
bu rayonun tabii dzslliklari, shalinin
masqullugu, igtisadi resurslar va inkisaf
potensiall nazara alinir. Bankin shamiyyatli
bazar pay paytaxtda camlagsa da, satig
sabakasi asasan regional filiallar hesabina
geniglanmakdadir.

Xalq Bank boyiik vasaitlerin yatirildig,
tikinti-ingaat iglerinin genis viiset aldig,
yeni biznes strukturlannin inkigaf etdiyi
bélgalerda 6z amaliyyatlarini ciddi sekilda
artirmaqda gararlidir. Bankin biitiin filiallar
an muasir bank texnologiyalari ila tachiz
olunub. Miisterilara miixtslif seqmentlara
hesablanmis genis ¢esidda mahsul va
xidmeatlar taklif olunur.

2013-cii ilden miigtarilara gostarilen
xidmatin keyfiyyat saviyyasinin
yiiksaldilmasi magsadils filiallarda
miiasir ndvba tagkili sistemi qurulmaga
baglanmigdir. Hazirda bankin 6 filial bu
sahanin dlinyada taninmig lideri olan
Q-matic sisteminin an son versiyast ilo
tachiz olunub. Bu sistemin tstiinliiyii
tekca miigtari axininin tagkilinda deyil,
ham da har bir amakdagin ig keyfiyyatini

In 2013 Xalq Bank continued active
expansion of the branch sales network.
By opening three more regional branches
during the reporting year the total
number of sales points reached 24
branches, with 6 of them operating in
Baku and 18 in regions.

As per accepted strategy the Bank
plans to expand the sales network further
and to increase the number of branches
in the country. Natural peculiarities,
employment status of population,
economic resources and development
potential of a region are considered when
making a decision to open a branch in
any region. Although the most important
market of the Bank is the capital city, the
sales network mainly expands on the
account of regional branches.

Xalg Bank has serious intentions to
expand its operations in regions where
large investments are being made,
construction works are extensively
performed and new business structures
are developed. All branches of the Bank
are equipped with the latest banking
technologies. Customers are offered wide
variety of products and services aimed at
various segments.

As from 2013 the branches are
being equipped with modern queue
management system in order to improve
the level of service quality. At present 6
branches of the Bank are equipped with
the latest version of the world famous
Q-matic system. The advantage of this
system is not only in the organization of
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Xalqg Bankin filiallar gabakasi
Branch network of Xalq Bank

giymatlendirmak va filialin satiglarini tahlil
etmak imkani veran malumat bazasinin
madvcudlugundadir.

Bankin miistarilare yaxinliginin asas
gartlarindan biri bankomat gabakasinin
genislandirilmasidir. Bununla bagl
2013-cii ilde Xalg Bank bankomat
sabakasinin genigladiriimasi va
optimizasiyas! istigamatinda tadbirlarini
davam etdirmisdir. Cash-in tipli daha
muasir bankomatlarin quragdirimasina
baglanmigdir. ©lava olaraq Bankin
filiallarinda miixtslif xidmatlarin
provayderlarinin xeyrina nagd vasaitlar
va kart vasitssila kigik odaniglari hayata
kegirmak imkani veran 0danig terminallan
faaliyyate baglamisdrr. il erzinda ticaret
mantagalarinin sayinin artirimasi yoniinda
isler davam etdirilmigdir. Cari ilda Bank
muistarilarimiza Ustiinliklar teqdim
edacak ticarat tarafdaslar gabakasinin
yaradilmasinda gatiyyatli addimlar atacag.

customer flow, but also in availability of
the database enabling to assess the work
efficiency quality of each employee and
to analyse the sales of branch.

One of the main conditions of affinity
of the Bank to the customer is the
expansion of the ATM network. In this
regard Xalg Bank continued the measures
on expansion and optimization of the
ATM network in 2013. The Bank started
installation of more modern
cash-in type ATM’s. In addition, the
branches of the Bank are equipped
with payment terminals accepting to
make small payments to various service
providers using cash or cards. The works
on increasing the number of merchants
has been continued throughout the year.
This year the Bank will take determined
steps in establishment of merchants’
network that will give advantages to the
Bank’s cardholders.
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Xalg Kapital
Xalg Caprtal

Azarbaycanda giymatli kagizlar
bazarinin son illarda stiratli ve dinamik
inkisafi bu maliyya sektorunu segilan
igtisadi ahamiyyatli sahalardan biri hesab
etmaya asas vermisdir. Qiymatli kagizlar
bazarinin fealiyyatinin tanzimlanmasinda
aparilan islahatlar bu sahads inkisafa
gorait yaratmigdir. Xisusile bazarda
alqi-satq aqdlarinin hayata kegirilmasi
dgiin yeni programlarin, yeni prosedur va
gaydalann hazirlanaraq tatbiqgi bazarin daha
etibarli formada faaliyyatine miisbat tasir
gOstermisdir.

Xalq Bankin térama sirkati olan Xalg
Kapital 23 senyabr 2013-cii il tarixda
giymetli kagizlar bazarinda 6z faaliyyatini
barpa etdikdan sonra broker va diler
xidmeatlarini gostermya davam etdi.

2013-cii ilda 3 ayliq fealiyyati dovriinda
sirkat broker xidmati tizre miistarilari tigtin
Morkozi Bankla Repo/dks repo, Maliyya
Nazirliyinin va AR ipoteka Fondunun
istigrazlar (izra alqi-satqi aqdlori hayata
kegirmisdir. Homin miiddat arzinda geyd
edilon emaliyyatlar (izro dovriyye
1,4 milyard manat tagkil etmisdir.

Xalq Kapital 2014-ci ilda giymatli
kagizlar bazarinda faaliyystinin
genislendiriimasi magsadila bir neca
istiqamatda tadbirlar gormakdadir. Yaxin
illerda sirkatin mustari bazasinin artinimasi,
korporativ giymatli kagizlar bazarinda yeni
emissiyalar, sshmlarin yerlagdirmasi va alqi-
satql dovriyyasinin geniglandirilmasi kimi
amaliyyatlarin hayata kegiriimasi nazarda
tutulub. Bununla Xalq Kapital 6lkanin aparicl
broker girkatlari arasinda 6z movgeyini daha
da méhkamlatmak niyyatindadir.

The rapid and dynamic development
of Azerbaijan’s securities market in
recent years has allowed to consider
this area of the financial industry as one
of the most important. Reforms carried
out for regulations of activity of the
securities’ market have established a very
favorable conditions for its growth and
development. Particularly, implementation
of new software, revision of existing and
development of new rules and procedures
have a positive impact on sustainable
growth of the market and increase in its
trustworthiness.

In September 2013, Xalq Bank
restored the activity of its subsidiary
company Xalq Kapital and continued
to deliver broker services in the Stock
Exchange Market.

During the last three months of 2013
Xalq Kapital provided broker service to
customers and carried out purchase
and sale transactions of the Central
Bank’s Repo/Reverse repo, the Ministry
of Finance and the State Mortgage
Fund bonds. The turnover for this period
amounted to about 1.5 billion manats.

In 2014 Xalq Kapital plans to develop
its activity in several areas in order to
expand its activity in securities market.
For the coming years, the Company will
priorities its activity on growth of customer
base, new issuing in the corporate
securities market, increase of purchase/
sale turnover and placement of shares.

The other important intention of the
Company is to keep its position among the
leading brokers in the local market.
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Xalg amanati layihas

The National Heritage Project

2013-ci il Xalg ©@manati layihasi tigiin
oldugca ugurlu ve mahsuldar kegmis, il
arzinda iki kitab nagr edilmigdir. 4 iyun
tarixda Azarbaycan xalgqinin boytik sairi
Mikayil Msfigin “Segilmig asarlari”nin
taqdimat marasimi boyiik tantana il
kegirilmigdir. Kitab sairin 105-ci ildonimu
arafasinda genis ictimaiyysta taqdim
olunmus va Mikayil Misfiq poeziyasinin
parastiskarlarina boyiik hadiyya
olmusdur.

Xalg @manati layihasinin
paytaxtdan regionlara ¢ixmasi yaradici
kollektivin va imumilikda Xalg Bankin
novbati nailiyystidir. Azarbaycanin
gadim gahari olan Ganca hamiga
incesanatin avanqgardinda iralilayib.

The 2013 was very successful and
productive year for the National Heritage
project - two edition were issued
during the year. In June presentation
of “Selected works” of one of the best
Azerbaijani poet Mikayil Mushfig was
held with great solemnity. The Album was
dedicated to 105th birth anniversary of
the great poet and become a wonderful
gift for poetry lovers.

Another great achievement of Xalq
Bank and its creative teamwork is
spread of the project from the capital
of the country to regions. One of the
most ancient and beautiful Azerbaijani
city Ganja was always in the forefront
of art. The ninth edition of the Project
“Painters of Ganja. Painting, sculpture,
graphics.” was dedicated to the life and
creativity of the five great Masters who
lived and created in Nizami’s homeland-
painters Rza Mammadov (1918-1994),
Khalida Safarova (1926-2005), Gennadiy
Brijatyuk (1935-2008), Fazil Aliyev (1947-
1993) and sculptor Gorkhmaz Sujaddinov.

On September 18th the album was
presented to the public and art exposition
of selected works was held in Ganja
Branch of the Bank.

Our books under the National Heritage
brand were displayed at a variety of
book expositions. Thousands of people
have approached our stand with a big
gratitude at the lll International Book
Exposition organized by the Ministry
of Gulture and Tourism of Azerbaijan in
September and dedicated to the 90th
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Miisfig (yuxari sira soldan
dordiincii) miiallim ve telaba
yoldaglari ila, Bakir Gobanzads
(ikinci sira soldan dordiincti)
da burdadir, 1930-cu il.

Mushfig (fourth from the left

in the top row) with tutor and
classmates, Bakir Chobanzada
(fourth from the left in the second
row) is also here. 1930 year.
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Xalida Saforova
Siisanlar, 1965, ketan, yagl boya,
129x86 sm

Khalida Safarova
The Irises, 1965, oil on canvas,
129x86 cm

Gennadi Brijatyuk
Kompozisiya, 1970-ci illar, ketan,
yagl boya, 86x72 sm

Gennady Brijatyuk
Composition, 1970s, oil on
canvas, 86x72 cm

Fazil dliyev
Etiid, 1970-ci illarin avvali, kagiz,
sanqina, 86x62 sm

Fazil Aliyev
Sketch, early 1970s, sanguine on
paper, 86x62 cm

Fazil dliyev

Kompozisiya, 1973, katan, yagli
boya, 50x38 sm

Fazil Aliyev

Composition, 1973, oil on canvas,
50x38 cm
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Qorxmaz Siicaddinov

Kisi fiquru, 2002-2003, tunc,
31x40x21 sm

Gorkhmaz Sudzhaddinov

Figure of a Man, 2002-2003,
bronze, 31x40x21 cm

Layiha gargivasinda hazirlanmig sayca
dogquzuncu nagr -“Ganca rassamlari.
Rangkarliq, heyksltarasliq va grafika” badii
albomu Nizami yurdunda yagayib-yaratmig
5 sanatkarin - rassamlar Rza Mesmmadov
(1918-1994), Xalide Safarova (1926-
2005), Gennadiy Brijatyuk (1935-2008),
Fazil dliyev (1947-1993) va heykaltarag
Qorxmaz Siicaddinovun hayat va
yaradiciligina hasr olunub. Sentyabr ayinin
18-da Ganca saharinda “Ganca rassamlari.
Rangkarlig, heykaltarasliq va grafika”

badii albomu ictimaiyysta taqdim olnmusg
va filialda tagkil edilmis badii galereyada
albomda yer almig sanatkarlarin asarlari
sargilanmisdir.

Xalg 9manati brendi altinda kitablarimiz
miixtslif kitab sargilarinda niimayis etdirilir.
Sentyabr ayinda Madaniyyat vo Turizm
Nazirliyinin Umummilli lider H.8liyevin
90-illik yubileyina hasr olunmus lll
Beynalxalq Kitab sargisinda quragdirilan
stendimizi minlarla insan ziyarst etmis,
nagrlarimizla baglh tegakkiirlarini
bildirmiglar. Nagrlarimiz ictimaiyyat
torafinden boyiik ragbatle gargilanir.

il arzinda diinyanin béyiik
kitabxanalarindan “Azarbaycan sikkalari”
toplusu ila bagh minnatdarliq maktublari
almigiq.

birth anniversary of the National Leader
Haydar Aliyev. Our editions are sincerely
welcomed by the public. During the year
we received many appreciation letters
for “Coins of Azerbaijan” issued in 2012
under the project and sent to the world’s
largest libraries.

Rza Mammadov

Altay Memmadovun “Hamyerlilor”
pyesinin tamasasina eskiz, kagiz,
karandas, 30x42 sm

Rza Mammadov

Sketch for the play “Countrymen”
based on the play of Altay
Mammadov, pencil on paper,
30x42 cm

illik Hesabat 2013 / Annual Report 2013



OPEN JOINT STOCK COMPANY XALQ BANK

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT
AND CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

31 DECEMBER 2013



44

TABLE OF CONTENTS

D OB~ W NN =

10
22
22
23
23
24
24
25
26
27
27
28
30
31
32
32
32
33
33
34
34
36
37
38
38
39
39

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Statement of Management’s Responsibilities
Independent Auditors’ Report

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Background

Basis of Presentation

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Net Interest Income

Allowance For Impairment Losses

Net (Loss) / Gain on Gold Operations

Net Gain on Foreign Exchange Operations
Fee and Commission Income and Expense
Operating Expenses

Income Taxes

Earnings Per Share

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Due from Banks

Loans to Customers

Investments Available-for-Sale

Premises, Equipment and Intangible Assets
Investment Properties

Other Assets

Due to Banks and Government Agencies
Customer Accounts

Other Liabilities

Share Capital

Financial Commitments and Contingencies
Transactions with Related Parties
Segment Reporting

Fair Value of Financial Instruments
Regulatory Matters

Capital Management

Risk Management Policies

illik Hesabat 2013 / Annual Report 2013



Statement of Management’s Responsibilities for the Preparation and Approval of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31
December 2013

The following statement, which should be read in conjunction with the independent auditors’ responsibilities stated in
the independent auditors’ report set out on page 2, is made with a view to distinguishing the respective responsibilities
of management and those of the independent auditors in relation to the consolidated financial statements of Open Joint
Stock Company Xalg Bank (the “Group”).

Management is responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that present fairly the financial
position of the Group at 31 December 2013, and the results of its operations, cash flows and changes in equity for the
year then ended, in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”).

IN PREPARING THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, MANAGEMENT IS RESPONSIBLE FOR:

¢ Selecting suitable accounting principles and applying them consistently;

e Making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

e Stating whether IFRS have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the
consolidated financial statements; and

¢ Preparing the consolidated financial statements on a going concern basis, unless it is inappropriate to presume that
the Group will continue in business for the foreseeable future.

MANAGEMENT IS ALSO RESPONSIBLE FOR:

¢ Designing, implementing and maintaining an effective and sound system of internal controls, throughout the Group;

¢ Maintaining proper accounting records that disclose, with reasonable accuracy at any time, the financial position of the
Group, and which enable them to ensure that the consolidated financial statements of the Group comply with IFRS;

¢ Maintaining statutory accounting records in compliance with legislation of the Republic of Azerbaijan;

¢ Taking such steps as are reasonably available to them to safeguard the assets of the Group; and

e Detecting and preventing fraud and other irregularities.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2013 were authorized for issue
on 31 March 2014 by the Management Board.

Approved for issue and signed on behalf of the Management Board on 31 March 2014.

Chairman Chief Accountant
Mr. Elkhan Aghayev Mrs. Tamilla Asadova
i11lik Hesabat 2013 / Annual Report 2013
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Independent auditors’ report

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To the Shareholders and Board of Directors of Open Joint Stock Company Xalq Bank

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Open Joint Stock Company Xalg Bank
and its subsidiary, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2013, and the
consolidated statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s responsibility for the consolidated financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management determines
is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
Open Joint Stock Company Xalg Bank and its subsidiary as at 31 December 2013, and their financial performance and
their cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.

31 March 2014

<z v/
(_’///': =z =
| E T

Director
Samir Asadullayev Jurijs Baltgailis, Dr.oec
Certified auditor Liaison Partner
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Open Joint Stock Company Xalg Bank
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income for the year ended 31 December 2013 (in Azerbaijan Manats)

Notes Year ended 31 Year ended 31
December 2013 December 2012
Interest income 4 77,118,762 60,916,353
Interest expense 4 (32,763,626) (26,284,123)
NET INTEREST INCOME BEFORE PROVISION FOR IMPAIRMENT
LOSSES ON INTEREST BEARING ASSETS 44,355,136 34,632,230
(Provision) / recovery of provision for impairment losses on interest
bearing assets 5 (3,656,444) (3,496,337)
NET INTEREST INCOME 40,698,692 31,135,893
Net gain on foreign exchange operations 7 1,879,695 1,382,230
Net gain / (loss) on gold operations 6 (6,098,453) 1,691,031
Fee and commission income 8 4,909,466 4,491,737
Fee and commission expense 8 (658,052) (630,389)
Gain / (loss) on revaluation of investment property 17 316,712 184,300
Other income 841,447 481,448
NET NON-INTEREST INCOME 1,190,815 7,600,357
OPERATING INCOME 41,889,507 38,736,250
OPERATING EXPENSES 9 (24,427,778) (20,932,979)
OPERATING PROFIT 17,461,729 17,803,271
Recovery of provision for impairment losses on guarantees and other
commitments 5 (3,450,308) (28,643)
PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 14,011,421 17,774,628
Income tax (expense) / benefit 10 (3,157,427) (3,299,281)
NET PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 10,853,994 14,475,347
Net profit for the year attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent 10,842,891 14,469,682
Non-controlling interest 11,103 5,665
10,853,994 14,475,347
EARNINGS PER SHARE
Basic and diluted (AZN) 11 2.987 3.986

Approved for issue and signed on behalf of the Management Board on 31 March 2014.

o /i

Chairman Chief Accountant
Mr. Elkhan Aghayev Mrs. Tamilla Asadova

i1lik Hesabat 2013 / Annual Report 2013
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Open Joint Stock Company Xalq Bank

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December 2013 (in Azerbaijan Manats)

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Gold

Due from banks

Loans to customers
Investments available-for-sale
Property and equipment
Investment property
Intangible assets

Deferred income tax asset
Other assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES

Due to banks and government agencies

Customer accounts

Provision for impairment losses on other operations
Current income tax liability

Other liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES

EQUITY

Share capital

Retained earnings
Non-controlling interest

TOTAL EQUITY

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Approved for issue and signed on behalf of the Management Board on 31 March 2014.

Chairman
Mr. Elkhan Aghayev

Notes 31 December 2013 31 December 2012
12 83,808,518 58,847,518
6,831,161 9,375,906
13 42,880,958 14,997,838
14 986,012,005 651,604,038
15 55,213,861 18,013,560
16 75,522,590 73,846,828
17 6,691,512 6,374,800
16 1,927,592 627,640
10 1,003,798 439,806
18 6,060,292 5,284,325
1,265,952,287 839,412,259
19 195,331,124 112,230,829
20 864,199,638 537,631,950
5 4,373,713 923,405
1,344,482 -
21 4,267,053 3,043,792
1,069,516,010 653,829,976
22 183,693,180 169,099,374
12,561,263 16,312,178
181,834 170,731
196,436,277 185,582,283
1,265,952,287 839,412,259

,1‘7 -(/’

/2/ ,

L. rJy"
Chief Accountant

Mrs. Tamilla Asadova
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Open Joint Stock Company Xalg Bank
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 December 2013 (in Azerbaijan Manats)

Share capital  Retained earnings / Non- Total equity
(Accumulated deficit)  controlling
interest
31 December 2011 140,492,610 30,449,260 165,066 171,106,936
Share capital increase 28,606,764 (28,606,764) - -
Total income for the year - 14,469,682 5,665 14,475,347
31 December 2012 169,099,374 16,312,178 170,731 185,582,283
Share capital increase 14,593,806 (14,593,806) - -
Total income for the year - 10,842,891 11,103 10,853,994
31 December 2013 183,693,180 12,561,263 181,834 196,436,277

Approved for issue and signed on behalf of the Management Board on 31 March 2014.

Chairman Chief Accountant
Mr. Elkhan Aghayev Mrs. Tamilla Asadova
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Open Joint Stock Company Xalg Bank
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 December 2013 (in Azerbaijan Manats)

Notes Year ended 31 Year ended 31
December 2013 December 2012
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Profit before income tax 14,011,421 17,774,628
Adjustments for:
Provision / (recovery of provision) for impairment losses on interest
bearing assets 5 3,656,444 3,496,337
Recovery of provision for guarantees and other commitments 3,450,308 28,643
Net unrealized (gain) / loss arising from changes in foreign currency
exchange rates (144,091) (195,681)
Depreciation and amortization 16 4,978,682 4,501,099
Gain on revaluation of investment property 17 (316,712) (184,300)
Gain on disposal of property and equipment (203,853) (9,671)
Loss / (gain) on disposal of intangible assets 2,341 -
Change in interest accruals, net (6,002,662) (12,882,890)
Cash flows from operating activities before changes in operating
assets and liabilities 19,431,878 12,528,165
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
(Increase)/decrease in operating assets:
Minimum reserve deposit with the Central Bank of Azerbaijan
Republic (4,135,460) (5,162,496)
Gold 2,544,745 (611,893)
Due from banks (7,594,038) (22,874)
Loans to customers (332,480,236) (211,983,532)
Other assets (776,545) 911,122
Increase/(decrease) in operating liabilities:
Due to banks and government agencies 83,030,899 18,346,909
Customer accounts 326,231,330 101,427,179
Other liabilities 1,223,261 1,040,925
Cash inflow / (outflow) from operating activities before taxation 87,475,834 (83,526,495)
Income tax paid (2,376,937) (3,144,682)
Net cash inflow / (outflow) from operating activities 85,098,897 (86,671,177)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of property, equipment and intangible assets 16 (8,021,502) (63,352,393)
Proceeds on disposal of property and equipment 268,618 291,504
Purchase of investments available-for-sale (36,354,093) (8,321,045)
Net cash outflow from investing activities (44,106,977) (71,381,934)
f11ik Hesabat 2013 / Annual Report 2013



Open Joint Stock Company Xalg Bank
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 December 2013 (Continued) (in Azerbaijan Manats)

Notes Year ended 31 Year ended 31
December 2013 December 2012
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Issue of ordinary share capital - -
Net cash inflow from financing activities - -

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes on cash and cash
equivalents 144,091 195,681
NET INCREASE / (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 41,136,011 (157,857,430)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of year 55,694,000 213,551,430
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of year 12 96,830,011 55,694,000

Interest paid and received by the Group in cash during the year ended 31 December 2013 amounted to AZN 32,357,872
and AZN 70,710,345, respectively.

Interest paid and received by the Group in cash during the year ended 31 December 2012 amounted to AZN 26,223,508
and AZN 47,972,853, respectively.

Approved for issue and signed on behalf of the Management Board on 31 March 2014.

Chairman Chief Accountant
Mr. Elkhan Aghayev Mrs. Tamilla Asadova
i11lik Hesabat 2013 / Annual Report 2013
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Open Joint Stock Company Xalq Bank
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2013 (Continued) (in Azerbaijan Manats)

1. BACKGROUND

Xalq Bank is a joint stock company which was established on 24 December 2004 in accordance with establishment
agreement and was registered by the Central Bank of Azerbaijan Republic on 27 December 2004. The address of its
registered office is 1145 Babek Avenue, Baku, AZ 1025, Azerbaijan. The Bank is regulated by the Central Bank of Azerbaijan
Republic (the “CBAR”) and conducts its business under the general banking license number 246. The Bank had 24 branches
in Azerbaijan as at 31 December 2013. The Bank’s primary business consists of commercial activities, trading with foreign
currencies, originating loans and guarantees.

The number of employees of the Bank at 31 December 2013 and 2012 was 518 and 461, respectively.

The Bank is a parent company of a banking group (the “Group”) which consists of the following enterprises consolidated in
the financial statements:

The Bank ownership

interest/ voting rights
Name Country of operation 2013 2012 Type of operation
Xalq Kapital LLC The Republic of Azerbaijan 100 % 100% Securities market transactions
Baki Ayaqqabi -2 0JSC The Republic of Azerbaijan 97.27% 97.27% | Dormant

“Xalq Kapital” LLC is a limited liability company registered in the Republic of Azerbaijan on 17 August 2007. The
company’s principal activity is operations with securities, broker and dealer operations.

“Baki Ayaqgabi -2” 0JSC is a Joint Stock Company registered in the Republic of Azerbaijan in December 1980. The
Company’s principal activity had been the manufacture of footwear. The Company has not been functioning since June
1999. The Group has acquired the controlling interest in the Company’s capital with the primary purpose of using it as
investment property. The Group’s management is still uncertain of the detailed plans regarding the Company.

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012 the following shareholders owned the issued shares of the Bank:

31 December 31 December
2013 2012
Ownership Ownership
interest, % interest, %
Ideal Biznes Ko LLC 50.00 50.00
Yevro Standart LLC 33.85 33.85
Avangard-1 LLC 16.15 16.15
Total 100 100

The ultimate controlling party of the Group is L.Aliyeva.

These consolidated financial statements were authorized for issue by the Management Board
on 31 March 2014.
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Open Joint Stock Company Xalq Bank
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2013 (Continued) (in Azerbaijan Manats)

2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION
Accounting basis

These consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and Interpretations issued
by the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (“IFRIC”). These consolidated financial statements are
presented in Azerbaijan Manats (“AZN”) unless otherwise indicated. These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, except for the measurement at fair value of certain financial instruments
and measurement of investment property at revalued amounts according to International Accounting Standard (“IAS”)
No. 40 “Investment Property”.

The Group maintains its accounting records in accordance with Azerbaijan law. These consolidated financial statements
have been prepared based on the Azerbaijani statutory accounting records and have been adjusted to conform with
IFRS. These adjustments include certain reclassifications to reflect the economic substance of underlying transactions
including reclassifications of certain assets and liabilities, income and expenses to appropriate financial statement
captions.

Key assumptions

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts. Such estimates and assumptions are based on the information
available to the Group’s management as of the date of the consolidated financial statements. Therefore, actual results
could differ from those estimates and assumptions. Estimates that are particularly susceptible to change relate to the
provisions for impairment losses and the fair value of financial instruments.

Key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial period include;

31 December 31 December

2013 2012

Loans to customers 986,012,005 651,604,038
Investments available for sale 55,213,861 18,013,560
Property and equipment 75,522,590 73,846,828
Investment Property 6,691,512 6,374,800

Loans to customers are measured at amortized cost less allowance for impairment losses. The estimation of allowances
for impairments involves the exercise of significant judgment. The Group estimates allowances for impairment with
the objective of maintaining balance sheet provisions at a level believed by management to be sufficient to absorb
losses incurred in the Bank’s loan portfolio. The calculation of provisions on impaired loans is based on the likelihood
of the asset being written off and the estimated loss on such a write-off. These assessments are made using statistical
techniques based on historic experience. These determinations are supplemented by the application of management
judgment.

i11lik Hesabat 2013 / Annual Report 2013
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Open Joint Stock Company Xalq Bank
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2013 (Continued) (in Azerbaijan Manats)

The Group considers accounting estimates related to provisions for loans key sources of estimation uncertainty because:
(i) they are highly susceptible to change from period to period as the assumptions about future default rates and
valuation of losses relating to impaired loans and advances are based on recent performance experience, and (i) any
significant difference between the Group’s estimated losses (as reflected in the provisions) and actual losses will require
the Group to take provisions which, if significantly different, could have a material impact on its future income statement
and its statement of financial position. The Group’s assumptions about estimated losses are based on past performance,
past customer behaviour, the credit quality of recent underwritten business and general economic conditions, which are
not necessarily an indication of future losses.

Investments available-for-sale are measured at fair value less impairment losses. The estimation of impairment losses
involves the exercise of significant management judgment. The accounting policy for the impairment of financial
instruments is discussed in Note 3 below.

Functional currency

Items included in the financial statements of the Group are measured using the currency that best reflects the economic
substance of the underlying events and circumstances relevant to that entity (the “functional currency”). The reporting
currency of the financial statements is the Azerbaijan Manats (“AZN”).

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Bank and entities controlled by the
Bank (its subsidiaries) made up to 31 December each year. Control is achieved where the Bank has the power to govern
the financial and operating policies of an investee entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

On acquisition, the assets and liabilities and contingent liabilities of a subsidiary are measured at their fair values at
the date of acquisition. Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair values of the identifiable net assets acquired
is recognized as goodwill. Any deficiency of the cost of acquisition below the fair values of the identifiable net assets
acquired (i.e. discount on acquisition) is credited to the consolidated income statement in the period of acquisition.
The minority interest is stated at the minority’s proportion of the fair values of the assets and liabilities recognized.
Subsequently, any losses applicable to the minority interest in excess of the minority interest are allocated against the
interests of the parent. The equity attributable to equity holders of the parent and net income attributable to minority
shareholders’ interests are shown separately in the consolidated statement of financial position and income statement,
respectively.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated income statement
from the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate. Where necessary, adjustments
are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring the accounting policies used into line with those used by
the Group.

All significant intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

The difference, if any, between the carrying amount of minority interest and the amount received on its purchase is
recognized in equity attributable to the equity holders of the parent.
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Open Joint Stock Company Xalq Bank
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2013 (Continued) (in Azerbaijan Manats)

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group is in a position to exercise significant influence, but not control or joint
control, through participation in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated in these financial statements using the equity
method of accounting.

Investments in associates are carried in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost as adjusted for goodwill
and for post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share of the net assets of the associate, less any impairment in the
value of individual investments. Losses of the associates in excess of the Group’s interest in those associates are not
recognized.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s share of the fair values of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities of the associate at the date of acquisition is recognized as goodwill. The goodwill is included in the
carrying amount of the investment and is assessed for impairment as part of the investment. Any deficiency of the cost
of acquisition below the Group’s share of the fair values of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of
the associate at the date of acquisition (i.e. discount on acquisition) is credited in the consolidated income statement in
the period of acquisition.

Where a Group company transacts with an associate of the Group, profits and losses are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interest in the relevant associate.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of a subsidiary or jointly controlled entity represents the excess of the cost of
acquisition over the Group’s interest in the fair value of assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of a subsidiary as at
the date of acquisition. Goodwill is initially recognized as an asset at cost and is subsequently measure at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses.

The Group tests goodwill for impairment at least annually. An impairment loss recognized for goodwill is not reversed
in a subsequent period.

If the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities exceeds the cost
of the business combination, the Group:

(@  Reassesses the identification and measurement of the Group’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities and the measurement of the cost of the combination; and

(b) Recognizes immediately in profit or loss any excess remaining after that reassessment.

On disposal of an investment, the amount of goodwill attributable is included in the determination of financial result
from disposal.

Recognition and measurement of financial instruments

The Group recognizes financial assets and liabilities on its consolidated statement of financial position when it becomes
a party to the contractual obligation of the instrument. Regular way purchase and sale of the financial assets and
liabilities are recognized using settlement date accounting. Regular way purchases of financial instruments that will be
subsequently measured at fair value between trade date and settlement date are accounted for in the same way as for
acquired instruments.

Financial assets and liabilities are initially recognized at fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset or financial
liability not at fair value through profit or loss transaction costs that are directly attributable to acquisition or issue of the
financial asset or financial liability. The accounting policies for subsequent re-measurement of these items are disclosed
in the respective accounting policies set out below.

i11lik Hesabat 2013 / Annual Report 2013
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Open Joint Stock Company Xalq Bank
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2013 (Continued) (in Azerbaijan Manats)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, unrestricted balances on correspondent and time deposit accounts
with the Central Bank of Azerbaijan Republic with original maturity within 90 days, advances to banks in countries
included in the Organization for Economic Cooperation and Development (“OECD”). For the purposes of determining
cash flows, the minimum reserve deposit required by the Central Bank of Azerbaijan Republic is not included as a cash
equivalent due to restrictions on its availability (Note 12).

Gold

Assets and liabilities denominated in gold are translated at the current rate computed based on the Central Bank rate
effective at the date. Changes in the bid prices are recorded in net gain on operations with gold.

Fiduciary activities

The Group provides depositary services to its customers which include transactions with securities on their depositary
accounts. Assets accepted and liabilities incurred under the fiduciary activities are not included in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements. The Group accepts operational risks relating to these activities, whereas the Group’s
customers bear the credit and market risks associated with such operations.

Due from banks

In the normal course of business, the Group maintains advances and deposits for various periods of time with other
banks. Due from banks with a fixed maturity term are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest method, and are carried net of any allowance for impairment losses. Those that do not have fixed maturities are
stated at amortized cost based on expected dates of maturity. Amounts due from credit institutions are carried net of
any allowance for impairment losses.

Loans to customers

Loans to customers are non-derivative assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market other than those classified in other categories of financial assets.

Loans to customers granted by the Group with fixed maturities are initially recognized at fair value plus related
transaction costs, directly attributable to the acquisition or creation of qualifying financial assets. Where the fair value of
consideration given does not equal the fair value of the loan, for example where the loan is issued at lower than market
rates, the difference between the fair value of consideration given and the fair value of the loan is recognized as a loss
on initial recognition of the loan and included in the consolidated income statement according to nature of these losses.
Subsequently, loans are carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method. Loans to customers are carried
net of any allowance for impairment losses.

The Group will take possession of any collateral held as security when a customer defaults on repayments of the loan
and the loan cannot be renegotiated. The Group will engage a third party to dispose of the collateral on their behalf in
the open market.

Factoring Assets

Factoring assets are non-derivative assets with determinable payments. These assets are initially recognized at fair
value and any costs directly related to creation of qualifying financial assets.

Where the fair value of consideration given does not equal the fair value of the factoring asset the difference between
the fair value of consideration given and the fair value of the asset is recognized as a loss on initial recognition of the
asset and included in the consolidated income statement according to nature of these losses. Subsequently, factoring
assets are carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method and are carried net of any allowance for
impairment losses.
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Write-off of loans and advances

Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are reflected as an offset to the charge for impairment of
financial assets in the consolidated income statement in the period of recovery.

Allowance for impairment losses
Assets carried at amortized cost

The Group accounts for impairment losses of financial assets that are not carried at fair value when there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired. The impairment losses are measured as
the difference between carrying amounts and the present value of expected future cash flows, including amounts
recoverable from guarantees and collateral, discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. Such
impairment losses are not reversed unless if in a subsequent period the amount of the impairment loss decreases and
the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, such as recoveries,
in which case the previously recognized impairment loss is reversed by adjusting an allowance account.

For financial assets carried at cost the impairment losses are measured as the difference between the carrying amount
of the financial asset and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of
return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment losses are not reversed.

Available-for-sale financial assets

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, a consolidated amount comprising the difference between its cost (net of
any principal payment and amortization) and its current fair value, less any impairment loss previously recognized
in the consolidated income statement, is transferred from equity to the consolidated income statement. Reversals of
impairment losses in respect of equity instruments classified as available-for-sale are not recognized in the consolidated
income statement. Reversals of impairment losses on debt instruments are reversed through the consolidated income
statement if the increase in fair value of the instrument can be objectively related to an event occurring after the
impairment loss were recognized in the consolidated income statement.

The determination of impairment losses is based on an analysis of the risk assets and reflects the amount which, in the
judgment of management, is adequate to provide for losses incurred. Provisions are made as a result of an individual
appraisal of risk assets for financial assets that are individually significant, and an individual or collective assessment
for financial assets that are not individually significant.

The change in impairment losses is charged to profit either through allowance account (financial assets that are carried
at amortized cost) or direct write-off (financial assets carried at cost). The total of the impairment losses is deducted
in arriving at assets as shown in the consolidated statement of financial position. Factors that the Group considers in
determining whether it has objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred include information about the
debtors’ or issuers’ liquidity, solvency and business and financial risk exposures, levels of and trends in delinquencies
for similar financial assets, national and local economic trends and conditions, and the fair value of collateral and
guarantees. These and other factors may, either individually or taken together, provide sufficient objective evidence that
an impairment loss has been incurred in a financial asset or group of financial assets.

It should be understood that estimates of losses involve an exercise of judgment. While it is possible that in particular
periods the Group may sustain losses which are substantial relative for impairment losses, it is the judgment of
management that the impairment losses are adequate to absorb losses incurred on risk assets, at the reporting date.
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Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, and
it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate of the obligation can be made.

Investments available-for-sale

Investments available-for-sale represent debt and equity investments that are intended to be held for an indefinite
period of time. Such securities are initially recorded at fair value. Subsequently the securities are measured at fair
value, with such re-measurement recognized directly in equity until sold when gain/loss previously recorded in equity
recycles through the consolidated income statement, except for impairment losses, foreign exchange gains or losses and
interest income accrued using the effective interest method, which are recognized directly in the consolidated income
statement. The Group uses quoted market prices to determine the fair value for the Group’s investments available-for-
sale. If the market for investments is not active, the Group establishes fair value by using a valuation technique. Valuation
techniques include using recent arm’s length market transactions between knowledgeable, willing parties, reference
to the current fair value of another instrument that is substantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis and other
applicable methods. If there is a valuation technique commonly used by market participants to price the instrument and
that technique has been demonstrated to provide reliable estimates of prices obtained in actual market transactions, the
Group uses that technique. Dividends received are included in dividend income in the consolidated income statement.

Non-marketable debt and equity securities are stated at amortized cost and cost, respectively, less impairment losses,
if any, unless fair value can be reliably measured.

When there is objective evidence that such securities have been impaired, the cumulative loss previously recognized
in equity is removed from equity and recognized in the consolidated income statement for the period. Reversals of
such impairment losses on debt instruments, which are objectively related to events occurring after the impairment,
are recognized in the consolidated income statement for the period. Reversals of such impairment losses on equity
instruments are not recognized in the consolidated income statement.

Investment properties

Investment property comprises land or buildings, which are held in order to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
or both, and which are not occupied by the companies in the Group or otherwise held for sale. Property held under
operating lease is classified as investment property if, and only if, it meets the definition of an investment property.
Investment property is carried at fair value. Fair value is based on active market prices, adjusted, if necessary, for
any difference in the nature, location or condition of the property. If this information is not available, the Group uses
alternative valuation methods such as discounted cash flow projections. Changes in the fair value of investment property
are recorded in the income statement.
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Premises, equipment and intangible assets

Property, equipment and intangible assets are carried at historical cost (except for buildings, which are stated at revalued
amounts) less accumulated depreciation and amortization and any recognized impairment loss. Depreciation on assets
under construction and those not placed in service commences from the date the assets are ready for their intended
use.

Depreciation of property, equipment and amortization of intangible assets is charged on their historical cost and is
designed to write off assets over their useful lives. It is calculated on a straight line basis at the following annual rates:

Building 3.3%
Furniture and equipment 25%
Computers 25%
Vehicles 25%
Other equipment 20%
Intangible assets 10%

The carrying amounts of property, equipment and intangible assets are reviewed at each reporting date to assess
whether they are recorded in excess of their recoverable amounts, and where the carrying values exceed the estimated
recoverable amounts, the assets are written down to their recoverable amounts. Impairment is recognized in the
respective period and is included in operating expenses. After the recognition of an impairment loss the depreciation
charge for property and equipment is adjusted in future periods to allocate the assets’ revised carrying value, less its
residual value (if any), on a systematic basis over its remaining useful life.

Land and buildings held for use in supply of services, or for administrative purposes, are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at their revalued amounts, being the fair value at the date of revaluation, determined from
market-based evidence by appraisal undertaken by professional independent valuers, less any subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses. Revaluations are performed with sufficient regularity
such that the carrying amount of the assets does not differ materially from that which would be determined using fair
values at the reporting date.

Market value of property is assessed using three methods:
The comparable sales method which involves analysis of market sales prices for similar real estate property;

The income-based method which assumes a direct relationship between revenues generated by the property
and its market value;

The cost method which presumes the value of property to be equal to its recoverable amount less any depreciation
charges.

Any revaluation increase arising on the revaluation of property is credited to the property, plant and equipment and
equipment revaluation reserve, except to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease for the same asset previously
recognized as an expense in the consolidated income statement, in which case the increase is credited to the consolidated
income statements to the extent of the decrease previously charged. A decrease in carrying amount of an asset arising
on the revaluation is charged as an expense to the income statement to the extent that it exceeds the balance, if any,
held in the property, plant and equipment revaluation reserve relating to a previous revaluation of that asset.

Depreciation on revalued buildings is charged to the consolidated income statement. Upon the retirement or sale of
buildings, the attributable revaluation surplus is transferred to retained earnings.
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Taxation

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred taxation. Income tax expense for the current period is determined
on the basis of the taxable profit received in the year. Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the income
statement because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further
excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s current tax expense is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted during the reporting period.

Deferred tax is reported using the balance sheet liability method and represents income tax assets and liabilities on
the temporary difference between the carrying value of assets and liabilities and the respective tax accounting data
used to arrive at the taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences
and deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which the respective deferred tax assets can be utilized. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in transactions that affect neither the tax profit nor the accounting profit. Deferred tax liabilities are recognised
for taxable temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint ventures,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and interests are only recognized to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilize the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying value of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that a related tax benefit will be realized sufficient for full or partial recovery of the asset.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset by the Group with the resulting difference reported in the financial statements
if:

The Group has a legally enforceable right to set off the current tax assets and current tax liabilities; and

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the
same taxpayer.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the
asset realized. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the consolidated income statement, except when it relates to items
charged or credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.

Due to banks and customer accounts

Due to banks and customer accounts are initially recognized at fair value. Subsequently amounts due are stated at
amortized cost and any difference between carrying and redemption value is recognized in the consolidated income
statement over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Contingencies

Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the consolidated statement of financial position but are disclosed unless the
possibility of any outflow in settlement is remote. A contingent asset is not recognized in the consolidated statement of
financial position but disclosed when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Financial guarantee contracts issued

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are credit insurance that provides for specified payments to be made
to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due under the original
or modified terms of a debt instrument. Such financial guarantee contracts issued are initially recognized at fair value.
Subsequently they are measured at the higher of (a) the amount recognized as a provision and (b) the amount initially
recognized less, where appropriate, cumulative amortization of initial premium revenue received over the financial
guarantee contracts issued.
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Share capital
Share capital is recognized at cost.

Dividends on ordinary shares are recognized in equity as a reduction in the period in which they are declared. Dividends
that are declared after the reporting date are treated as a subsequent event under International Accounting Standard 10
“Events after the reporting period” (“IAS 10”) and disclosed accordingly.

Retirement and other benefit obligations

In accordance with the requirements of the legislation of the Republic of Azerbaijan, the Group withholds amounts of
pension contributions from employee salaries and pays them to the state pension fund. Such expense is charged in the
period the related salaries are earned. Upon retirement all retirement benefit payments are made by the state pension
fund. The Group does not have any pension arrangements separate from the state pension system of Azerbaijan, which
requires current contributions by employer calculated as a percentage of current gross salary payments. In addition, the
Group has no post-retirement benefits or other significant compensated benefits requiring accrual.

Recognition of income and expense

Interest income and expense are recognized on an accrual basis using effective interest method. The effective interest
method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial asset or a financial liability (or group of financial
assets or financial liabilities) and of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected
life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount of the financial asset
or financial liability.

Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been written down (partly written down) as a result of
an impairment loss, interest income is thereafter recognized using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash
flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.

Interests earned on assets at fair value are classified within interest income.

Loan origination fees are deferred, together with the related direct costs, and recognized as an adjustment to the effective
interest rate of the loan. Where it is probable that a loan commitment will lead to a specific lending arrangement, the
loan commitment fees are deferred, together with the related direct costs, and recognized as an adjustment to the
effective interest rate of the resulting loan. Where it is unlikely that a loan commitment will lead to a specific lending
arrangement, the loan commitment fees are recognized in the consolidated income statement over the remaining
period of the loan commitment. Where a loan commitment expires without resulting in a loan, the loan commitment fee
is recognized in the consolidated income statement on expiry. Loan servicing fees are recognized as revenue as the
services are provided. All other commissions are recognized when services are provided.

Foreign currency translation

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Azerbaijan Manats at the appropriate
spot rates of exchange ruling at the reporting date. Foreign currency transactions are accounted for at the exchange
rates prevailing at the date of the transaction. Profits and losses arising from these translations are included in net gain
on foreign exchange operations.

i11lik Hesabat 2013 / Annual Report 2013

61



62

Open Joint Stock Company Xalq Bank
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2013 (Continued) (in Azerbaijan Manats)

Rates of exchange

The exchange rates at the year end used by the Group in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements are
as follows:

31 December 2013 31 December 2012
USD 1 =AZN 0.7845 USD 1 =AZN 0.7850
EUR 1 = AZN 1.0780 EUR 1 = AZN 1.0377
GBP 1 = AZN 1.2927 GBP 1 = AZN 1.2694
RUR 1 = AZN 0.0241 RUR 1 = AZN 0.0258

Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group that is engaged either in providing products or services (business
segment) or in providing products or services within a particular economic environment (geographical segment), which
is subject to risks and rewards that are different from those of other segments. Segments with a majority of revenue
earned from sales to external customers and whose, revenue, results are ten per cent or more of all the segments are
reported separately. No geographical segments of the Group have been reported separately within these consolidated
financial statements as all operations are conducted within Azerbaijan.

Offset of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and reported net on the consolidated statement of financial position when the
Group has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and the Group intends either to settle on a net
basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. In accounting for a transfer of a financial asset that
does not qualify for derecognition, the Group does not offset the transferred asset and the associated liability.

Adoption of new or revised standards and interpretations and new accounting pronouncements

Certain new IFRSs became effective for the Group from 1 January 2013. Listed below are those new or amended
standards or interpretations which are relevant to the Group’s operations and the nature of their impact on the Group’s
accounting policies.

IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements. IFRS 10 establishes a single control model that applies to all entities including
special purpose entities. The changes introduced by IFRS 10 will require management to exercise significant judgement
to determine which entities are controlled, and therefore, are required to be consolidated by a parent, compared with the
requirements that were in IAS 27. In addition IFRS 10 introduces specific application guidance for agency relationships.
IFRS 10 replaces the portion of IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements that addresses the accounting
for consolidated financial statements. It also includes the issues raised in SIC 12 Consolidation — Special Purpose
Entities. It is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013.

IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements. IFRS 11 removes the option to account for jointly controlled entities (JCES) using
proportionate consolidation. Instead, JCEs that meet the definition of a joint venture must be accounted for using the
equity method. IFRS 11 supersedes IAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures and SIC 13 Jointly Controlled Entities — Non
monetary Contributions by Venturers and is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013.

IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities. IFRS 12 includes all of the disclosures that were previously in IAS 27
related to consolidated financial statements, as well as all of the disclosures that were previously included in I1AS 31 and
IAS 28. These disclosures relate to an entity’s interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and structured
entities. A number of new disclosures are also required. IFRS 12 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2013. Adoption of the standard will require new disclosures to be made in the financial statements of the Group
but will have no impact on its financial position or performance.
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IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement. IFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance under IFRS for all fair value
measurements. IFRS 13 does not change when an entity is required to use fair value, but rather provides guidance on
how to measure fair value under IFRS when fair value is required or permitted. IFRS 13 is effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2013. The adoption of the IFRS 13 had no effect on the measurement of the Group’s
assets and liabilities accounted for at fair value.

IAS 27 Separate Financial Statements (as revised in 2011). As a consequence of the new IFRS 10 and IFRS 12, what
remains of IAS 27 is limited to accounting for subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities, and associates in separate financial
statements. The amendment becomes effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013.

IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures (as revised in 2011). IAS 28 has been renamed IAS 28 Investments
in Associates and Joint Ventures, and describes the application of the equity method to investments in joint ventures
in addition to associates. The amendment becomes effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013.

Amendments to IAS 19 Employee Benefits. The IASB has published amendments to IAS 19 Employee Benefits, effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013, which proposes major changes to the accounting for employee
benefits, including the removal of the option for deferred recognition of changes in pension plan assets and liabilities
(known as the “corridor approach”). In addition, these amendments limit the changes in the net pension asset (liability)
recognised in profit or loss to net interest income (expense) and service costs.

Amendments to IAS 1 Changes to the Presentation of Other Comprehensive Income. The amendments to IAS 1
Presentation of Financial Statements, effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012, change the grouping
of items presented in other comprehensive income. Items that could be reclassified (or ‘recycled’) to profit or loss at a
future point in time (for example, upon derecognition or settlement) would be presented separately from items that will
never be reclassified. These amendments will change presentation in the statement of comprehensive income but will
have no effect on the financial position and performance.

The above mentioned new or amended standards and interpretations effective from 1 January 2013 did not have a
material impact on the accounting policies, financial position or performance of the Group.

Certain new standards and interpretations have been published that become effective for the accounting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2014 or later periods and which are relevant to the Group but not early adopted by the
Group.

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments. IFRS 9, as issued, reflects the first phases of the IASB’s work on the replacement of IAS
39 and applies to classification and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities as defined in I1AS 39. The
standard was initially effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013, but Amendments to IFRS 9
Mandatory Effective Date of IFRS 9 and Transition Disclosures, issued in December 2011, moved the mandatory effective
date to 1 January 2015. In subsequent phases, the IASB is addressing hedge accounting and impairment of financial
assets. The adoption of the first phase of IFRS 9 will have an effect on the classification and measurement of the Group’s
financial assets, but will not have an impact on classification and measurements of the Group’s financial liabilities. The
Group will quantify the effect in conjunction with the other phases, when the final standard including all phases is issued.

Investment Entities — Amendments to IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements, IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in
Other Entities and IAS 27 Separate Financial Statements. These amendments provide an exception to the consolidation
requirement for entities that meet the definition of an investment entity under IFRS 10. The exception to consolidation
requires investment entities to account for subsidiaries at fair value through profit or loss. These amendments become
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014.
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Amendments to IAS 32 Presentation — Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial liabilities: These amendments clarify
the meaning of “currently has a legally enforceable right to set off” and also clarify the application of the IAS 32 offsetting
criteria to settlement systems (such as central clearing house systems) which apply gross settlement mechanisms that
are not simultaneous. The amendment becomes effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014.

Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge Accounting — Amendments to IAS 39 Financial Instrument: Recognition
and Measurement. These amendments provide relief from discontinuing hedge accounting when novation of a derivative
designated as a hedging instrument meets certain criteria. These amendments are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2014. The Group does not expect that these amendments will have an impact on its financial
statements as the Group does not apply hedge accounting according to IFRS.

Recoverable amount disclosures for non financial assets — Amendments to IAS 36 Impairment of Assets (issued in May
2013). The amendments remove the requirement to disclose the recoverable amount when a CGU contains goodwill or
indefinite lived intangible assets but there has been no impairment. These amendments are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2014; earlier application is permitted if IFRS 13 is applied for the same accounting and
comparative period.

Defined benefit plans: Employee contributions — Amendments to IAS 19 Employee Benefits (issued in November 2013).
The amendment allows entities to recognize employee contributions as a reduction in the service cost in the period
in which the related employee service is rendered, instead of attributing the contributions to the periods of service, if
the amount of the employee contributions is independent of the number of years of service. These amendments are
effective for annual periods beginning 1 July 2014.

Described above, the new standards and interpretations are not expected to significantly affect the Group’s financial
statements.

Areas of significant management judgment and sources of estimation uncertainty

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires management to make estimates and judgments that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the reporting date and the reported amount of income and expenses
during the period ended. Management evaluates its estimates and judgments on an ongoing basis. Management bases
its estimates and judgments on historical experience and on various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions. The
following estimates and judgments are considered important to the portrayal of the Group’s financial condition.

Allowance for impairment of loans and receivables

The Group regularly reviews its loans and receivables to assess for impairment. The Group’s loan impairment provisions
are established to recognize incurred impairment losses in its portfolio of loans and receivables. The Group considers
accounting estimates related to allowance for impairment of loans and receivables a key source of estimation uncertainty
because (i) they are highly susceptible to change from period to period as the assumptions about future default rates and
valuation of potential losses relating to impaired loans and receivables are based on recent performance experience,
and (ii) any significant difference between the Group’s estimated losses and actual losses would require the Group to
record provisions which could have a material impact on its financial statements in future periods.
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The Group uses management’s judgment to estimate the amount of any impairment loss in cases where a borrower
has financial difficulties and there are few available sources of historical data relating to similar borrowers. Similarly,
the Group estimates changes in future cash flows based on past performance, past customer behavior, observable data
indicating an adverse change in the payment status of borrowers in a group, and national or local economic conditions
that correlate with defaults on assets in the group. Management uses estimates based on historical loss experience for
assets with credit risk characteristics and objective evidence of impairment similar to those in the group of loans and
receivables. The Group uses management’s judgment to adjust observable data for a group of loans or receivables to
reflect current circumstances not reflected in historical data.

The allowances for impairment of financial assets in the consolidated financial statements have been determined
on the basis of existing economic and political conditions. The Group is not in a position to predict what changes in
conditions will take place in the Republic of Azerbaijan and what effect such changes might have on the adequacy of
the allowances for impairment of financial assets in future periods.

The carrying amount of the allowance for impairment of loans to customers is AZN 30,586,436 and AZN 26,669,992 as
at 31 December 2013 and 2012.

Valuation of Financial Instruments

Financial instruments that are classified as available for sale. The fair value of such financial instruments is the estimated
amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a
forced or liquidation sale. If a quoted market price is available for an instrument, the fair value is calculated based on
the market price. When valuation parameters are not observable in the market or cannot be derived from observable
market prices, the fair value is derived through analysis of other observable market data appropriate for each product
and pricing models which use a mathematical methodology based on accepted financial theories. Pricing models take
into account the contract terms of the securities as well as market-based valuation parameters, such as interest rates,
volatility, exchange rates and the credit rating of the counterparty. Where market-based valuation parameters are not
directly observable, management will make a judgment as to its best estimate of that parameter in order to determine a
reasonable reflection of how the market would be expected to price the instrument. In exercising this judgment, a variety
of tools are used including proxy observable data, historical data, and extrapolation techniques. The best evidence of
fair value of a financial instrument at initial recognition is the transaction price unless the instrument is evidenced by
comparison with data from observable markets. Any difference between the transaction price and the value based on a
valuation technique is not recognized in the consolidated income statement on initial recognition. Subsequent gains or
losses are only recognized to the extent that it arises from a change in a factor that market participants would consider
in setting a price.

The Group considers that the accounting estimate related to valuation of financial instruments where quoted markets
prices are not available is a key source of estimation uncertainty because: (i) it is highly susceptible to change from
period to period because it requires management to make assumptions about interest rates, volatility, exchange rates,
the credit rating of the counterparty, valuation adjustments and specific feature of the transactions and (i) the impact
that recognizing a change in the valuations would have on the assets reported on its consolidated statement of financial
position as well as its profit/(loss) could be material.

Had management used different assumptions regarding the interest rates, volatility, exchange rates, the credit rating of
the counterparty and valuation adjustments, a larger or smaller change in the valuation of financial instruments where
quoted market prices are not available would have resulted that could have had a material impact on the Group’s
reported net income. The carrying amount of the financial instruments at fair value is as follows as at 31 December
2013 and 2012:

31 December 31 December
2013 2012
Investments available-for-sale 55,213,861 18,013,560
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Open Joint Stock Company Xalq Bank

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2013 (Continued) (in Azerbaijan Manats)

4. NET INTEREST INCOME

Net interest income comprise:

Interest income comprises
Interest on loans to customers
Interest on debt securities
Interest on guarantees
Interest on due from banks
Interest on other operations

Total interest income on financial assets recorded at amortized cost

Interest expense comprises:
Interest on customer accounts
Interest on due to banks and government agencies

Total interest expense on financial assets recorded at amortized cost

Net interest income before provision for impairment losses on interest

bearing assets

5. ALLOWANCE FOR IMPAIRMENT LOSSES

The movements in allowance for impairment losses on interest earning assets were as follows:

31 December 2011

Provision

31 December 2012

(Recovery of provision)/provision

31 December 2013

66

Year ended 31 Year ended 31

December 2013 December 2012

75,871,083 59,496,925

565,277 900,110

482,251 419,185

74,959 86,016

125,192 14,117

77,118,762 60,916,353

28,116,279 23,779,860

4,647,347 2,504,263

32,763,626 26,284,123

44,355,136 34,632,230

Due from Loans to Total
banks customers

- 23,473,655 23,473,655

300,000 3,196,337 3,496,337

300,000 26,669,992 26,969,992

(260,000) 3,916,444 3,656,444

40,000 30,586,436 30,626,436
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Open Joint Stock Company Xalq Bank
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2013 (Continued) (in Azerbaijan Manats)

The movements in provision for impairment losses on guarantees and other commitments were as follows:

31 December 2011
Provision
31 December 2012
Provision

31 December 2013

6. NET (LOSS) / GAIN ON GOLD OPERATIONS

Net (loss) /gain on gold operations comprise:

Net gain on gold operations
Translation difference on gold

Total net (loss) / gain on gold operations

7.NET GAIN ON FOREIGN EXCHANGE OPERATIONS

Net gain on foreign exchange operations comprise:

Dealing differences, net
Translation differences, net

Total net gain on foreign exchange operations
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Guarantees and other

commitments

894,762
28,643
923,405
3,450,308
4,373,713
Year ended 31 Year ended 31
December 2013 December 2012
720 37,427
(6,099,173) 1,653,604
(6,098,453) 1,691,031
Year ended 31 Year ended 31
December 2013 December 2012
1,735,604 1,186,549
144,091 195,681
1,879,695 1,382,230
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Open Joint Stock Company Xalq Bank

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2013 (Continued) (in Azerbaijan Manats)

8. FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME AND EXPENSE

Fee and commission income and expense comprise:

Fee and commission income:
Cash operations

Foreign exchange operations
Factoring

Settlements

Plastic cards operations
Letters of credit

Guarantee letters

Other

Total fee and commission income

Fee and commission expense:
Plastic cards operations
Settlements

Cash operations

Letters of credit

Guarantee letters

Other

Total fee and commission expense

9. OPERATING EXPENSES

Operating expenses comprise:

Staff costs
Depreciation and amortization

Payments to the Deposit Insurance Fund of the Republic of Azerbaijan

Security expenses

Operating leases

Taxes, other than income tax

Advertising and marketing expenses
Insurance

Communications

Entertainment

Repairs and maintenance expenses
Transportation and business trip expenses
Stationery expenses

Professional services fees

Utilities

Membership fees

Loss on disposal of property, equipment and intangible assets
Other expenses

Total operating expenses

Year ended 31 Year ended 31
December 2013 December 2012
1,339,364 1,167,039
860,038 675,195
855,851 1,207,471
739,085 949,315
635,650 437,655
325,309 15,131
13,973 38,358
140,196 1,573
4,909,466 4,491,737
352,456 276,405
189,296 174,300
45,390 85,284

26,522 11,628

6,183 28,566

38,205 54,206
658,052 630,389

Year ended 31 Year ended 31
December 2013 December 2012
11,289,523 8,665,689
4,978,678 4,501,101
2,199,358 1,931,365
1,050,873 901,218
954,983 759,366
692,621 430,764
507,043 527,822
440,110 420,175
379,335 420,815
346,405 769,347
333,333 249,580
269,490 219,350
225,407 261,162
213,511 197,923
199,953 220,662
34,591 16,250

13,299 -
299,265 440,390
24,427,778 20,932,979
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Open Joint Stock Company Xalq Bank
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2013 (Continued) (in Azerbaijan Manats)

10. INCOME TAXES

The Group provides for taxes based on the tax accounts maintained and prepared in accordance with the tax regulations
of countries where the Group and its subsidiaries operate and which may differ from International Financial Reporting
Standards.

The Group is subject to certain permanent tax differences due to non-tax deductibility of certain expenses and a tax free
regime for certain income. The statutory income tax rate is 20%.

Deferred taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for tax purposes.

Temporary differences as at 31 December 2013 and 2012 relate mostly to different methods of income and expense
recognition as well as to recorded values of certain assets.

Temporary differences as at 31 December 2013 and 2012 comprise:

31 December

31 December

2013 2012
Deductible temporary differences:
Allowance for losses on loans to customers 7,187,847 2,822,976
Amortization 265,953 263,258
Gold 252,140 -
Due from banks - 200,000
Other liabilities 1,359,620 955,025
Total deductible temporary differences 9,065,560 4,241,259
Taxable temporary differences:
Depreciation (4,046,568) (2,042,227)
Provision reversal on off balance items - -
Total deductible temporary differences (4,046,568) (2,042,227)
Net deferred deductible temporary differences 5,018,992 2,199,032
Net deferred tax asset at the statutory tax rate (20%) 1,003,798 439,806
Net deferred tax asset 1,003,798 439,806

i11lik Hesabat 2013 / Annual Report 2013




Open Joint Stock Company Xalq Bank
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2013 (Continued) (in Azerbaijan Manats)

Relationships between tax expenses and accounting profit for the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012 are

70

explained as follows:

Year ended 31 Year ended 31

December 2013 December 2012

Profit before income tax 14,011,421 17,774,628
Tax at the statutory tax rate of 20% 2,802,284 3,554,926
Tax effect of permanent differences 355,143 (255,645)
Income tax expense / (benefit) 3,157,427 3,299,281
Current income tax expense 3,721,419 3,144,682
Deferred income tax expense / (benefit) (563,992) 154,599
Income tax expense / (benefit) 3,157,427 3,299,281

31 December

31 December

Deferred income tax assets 2013 2012
Beginning of the period 439,806 594,405
Change in the income tax assets for the period charged to profit 563,992 (154,599)
End of the period 1,003,798 439,806
11. EARNINGS PER SHARE
The earnings per share are calculated as follows:
Year ended 31 Year ended 31

December 2013 December 2012
Profit:
Net profit for the year 10,842,891 14,469,682
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for basic earnings per share 3,630,300 3,630,300
Earnings per share — basic and diluted (AZN) 2.987 3.986
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Open Joint Stock Company Xalq Bank
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2013 (Continued) (in Azerbaijan Manats)

12. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and balances with the Central Bank of Azerbaijan Republic comprise:

31 December

2013
Cash on hand 33,206,883
Balances with the Central Bank of Azerbaijan Republic 50,601,635
Total cash and balances with the Central Bank of Azerbaijan Republic 83,808,518

31 December
2012

19,718,312
39,129,206

58,847,518

The balances with the CBAR as at 31 December 2013 and 2012 include AZN 21,113,627 and AZN 16,978,167,
respectively, which represent the minimum reserve deposits required by the CBAR. The Bank is entitled to use all funds
on its correspondent account provided that average daily balance for 30 days period will be eventually higher than

required mandatory reserve.

Cash and cash equivalents for the purposes of the statement of cash flows comprise:

31 December

2013

Cash and balances with the Central Bank of Azerbaijan Republic 83,808,518
Due from banks in OECD countries 35,928,153
119,736,671

Less minimum reserve deposit with the Central Bank of Azerbaijan Republic (21,113,627)
Less restricted deposit in OECD countries (1,793,033)
Total cash and cash equivalents 96,830,011

31 December 2012

58,847,518
14,016,974
72,864,492

(16,978,167)
(192,325)

55,694,000

13. DUE FROM BANKS
Due from banks comprise:

31 December

2013

Loans and time deposits with other banks 2,000,208
Correspondent accounts with other banks 39,119,872
Restricted deposits 1,800,878
42,920,958

Less: allowance for impairment losses (40,000)
Total due from banks 42,880,958

31 December
2012

1,021,597
14,076,066
200,175

15,297,838
(300,000)

14,997,838

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012 accrued interest income included in due from banks amounted to AZN 208 and AZN

21,597, respectively.

Movements in allowances for impairment losses on balances due from banks for the years ended 31 December 2013

and 2012 are disclosed in Note 5.
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Open Joint Stock Company Xalq Bank
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2013 (Continued) (in Azerbaijan Manats)

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012 the maximum credit risk exposure of due from banks amounted to AZN 42,880,958
and AZN 14,997,838, respectively.

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012 the Bank had restricted deposits blocked in support of guarantees issued and plastic
cards operations and money transfers totaling AZN 1,800,878 and AZN 200,175, respectively.

14. LOANS TO CUSTOMERS

Loans to customers comprise:

31 December 2013 31 December 2012

Loans to customers 1,016,598,441 678,274,030
Less allowance for impairment losses (30,586,436) (26,669,992)
Total loans to customers 986,012,005 651,604,038

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012 accrued interest income included in loans to customers amounted to AZN 19,831,279
and AZN 14,247,104, respectively.

Movements in allowances for impairment losses for the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012 are disclosed in Note 5.

The table below summarizes the amount of loans secured by collateral, rather than the fair value of the collateral itself:

31 December

31 December

2013 2012

Loans collateralized by real estate 320,178,265 210,615,594
Loans collateralized by cash 290,012,524 2,774,882
Loans collateralized by guarantees 166,858,114 149,881,787
Loans collateralized by equipment 64,185,642 77,236,377
Loans collateralized by vehicles 28,298,218 27,270,460
Loans collateralized by trade receivable 26,826,574 89,976,236
Loans collateralized by shares of other entities 2,506,464 2,387,494
Unsecured loans 117,732,640 118,131,200
1,016,598,441 678,274,030

Less allowance for impairment losses (30,586,436) (26,669,992)
Total loans to customers 986,012,005 651,604,038
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Open Joint Stock Company Xalq Bank
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2013 (Continued) (in Azerbaijan Manats)

31 December

31 December

Analysis by industry 2013 2012
Construction 311,822,014 87,490,853
Energy 217,301,903 216,345,034
Individuals 139,925,378 103,571,683
Mining 135,365,475 114,610,000
Manufacturing 100,010,819 48,812,206
Transportation and communication 65,209,718 82,339,839
Agriculture 21,934,182 11,197,234
Trading 1,199,872 506,930
Other 23,829,080 13,400,251

1,016,598,441 678,274,030
Less allowance for impairment losses (30,586,436) (26,669,992)
Total loans to customers 986,012,005 651,604,038

Loans to individuals comprise the following products:

31 December

31 December

2013 2012

Mortgage loans 62,714,888 51,835,995
Consumer loans 45,791,379 27,308,658
Car loans 24,934,015 19,103,766
Business loans 5,520,372 4,755,988
Plastic cards 964,724 567,276
139,925,378 103,571,683

Less allowance for impairment losses (8,058,181) (6,291,149)
Total loans to customers 131,867,197 97,280,534

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012 the Bank granted 8 and 4 loans totaling AZN 602,030,870 and AZN 359,010,672,
respectively, which individually exceeded 10% of the Group’s equity.

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012 the maximum credit risk exposure of loans to customers amounted to AZN
986,012,005 and AZN 651,604,038, respectively.

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012 loans to customers included loans inamount of AZN 47,872,248 and AZN 120,385,211,
respectively, whose terms have been renegotiated. Otherwise these loans would be past due or impaired.

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012 loans to customers included loans in amount of AZN 632,253,533 and AZN
517,910,465, respectively, that were individually determined to be impaired.

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012 60% and 57% of total amount of loans to customers are given to 8 and 5 entities,
respectively.

A significant amount of loans (100% of loans to customers) is granted to companies operating in the Republic of
Azerbaijan, which represents significant geographical concentration in one region.
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Open Joint Stock Company Xalq Bank

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2013 (Continued) (in Azerbaijan Manats)

15. INVESTMENTS AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE

Investments available-for-sale comprise:

Debt securities

Equity securities

Total investments available-for-sale

31 December

31 December

2013 2012
55,036,392 17,836,184
177,469 177,376
55,213,861 18,013,560

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012 accrued interest income included in investments available for sale amounted to AZN

1,010,392 and AZN 164,184, respectively.

Equity securities

Baku Stock Exchange

Millikart LTD
SWIFT SCRL

Total equity securities

Debt securities

Notes issued by Azerbaijan Mortgage Fund

Total debt securities

Share
%

Nominal
interest
rate

3.13

31 December
2013

135,000
40,000
2,469

177,469

31 December
2013

55,036,392

55,036,392

Share
%

Nominal
Interest
rate

3.01

31 December
2012

135,000
40,000
2,376

177,376

31 December
2012

17,836,184
17,836,184
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Open Joint Stock Company Xalq Bank
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2013 (Continued) (in Azerbaijan Manats)

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Investment properties comprise:

Year ended 31 Year ended 31

December 2013 December 2012

Investment property at fair value at beginning of the year 6,374,800 6,190,500
Fair value gains / (loss) 316,712 184,300
Investment properties at end of the year 6,691,512 6,374,800

Details of valuation of investment property:

The Group holds its investment property for the purposes of capital appreciation and possible future rental out to third
parties. The fair value of investment property as at 31 December 2013 was determined on 30 December 2013 by AIS
Azintellektservice, who holds a recognized professional qualification. The basis used for the appraisal was market value.

18. OTHER ASSETS
Other assets comprise:

31 December

2013
Settlements on money transfers 1,620,453
Prepayments for purchase of property and equipment 1,550,027
Collateral repossessed 1,120,321
Deferred expenses 717,267
Prepayments and receivables on other transactions 605,754
Prepaid operating taxes 262,777
Prepaid operating leases 156,035
Prepayments for purchases of intangible assets 15,533
Accrued interest on other operations 7,500
Other 4,625
Total other assets 6,060,292

31 December
2012

461,324
407,773
934,581
786,405
162,679
871,275
173,534
1,478,676
8,078

5,284,325

19. DUE TO BANKS AND GOVERNMENT AGENCIES

Due to banks and government agencies comprise:

31 December

31 December

2013 2012
Amount due to the National Fund for Support of Entrepreneurship 59,542,701 28,318,805
Loans from Banks 39,225,000 -
Amount due to Azerbaijan Mortgage Fund 38,312,321 32,683,302
Amount due to State Oil Company of Azerbaijan Republic 28,482,875 20,826,702
Loans from the CBAR 25,450,000 25,850,000
Correspondent accounts of other banks 4,017,158 3,950,580
Amount due to the National Depositary Center 301,069 601,440
Total due to banks and government agencies 195,331,124 112,230,829

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012 accrued interest expense included in due to banks and government agencies

amounted to AZN 215,621 and AZN 146,225, respectively.
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Open Joint Stock Company Xalq Bank
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2013 (Continued) (in Azerbaijan Manats)

20. CUSTOMER ACCOUNTS

Customer accounts comprise:

Time deposits
Repayable on demand

Total customer accounts

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012 accrued interest expense included in customer accounts amounted to AZN 1,222,293

and AZN 885,935, respectively.

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012 customer accounts amounting to AZN 577,395,176 and AZN 326,338,106 were

31 December
2013

547,139,696
317,059,942

864,199,638

31 December
2012

379,136,600
158,495,350

537,631,950

due to 9 and 10 customers representing a significant concentration, being approximately 67% and 61%, respectively.

Individuals
Investing
Insurance
Trade
Construction
Energy
Transport and communication
Entertainment
Manufacturing
Financing
Agriculture
Other

Total customer accounts

21. OTHER LIABILITIES

Other liabilities comprise:

Payables to the employees

Settlements on money transfers and plastic cards
Taxes other than income tax

Payables to the Deposit Insurance Fund

Deferred revenue

Accrued expenses

Professional fees payable

Payables to the State Social Protection Fund
Other

Total other liabilities
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31 December
2013

600,130,240
166,992,136
35,643,589
14,931,759
13,830,931
10,338,165
9,672,962
8,405,070
1,750,491
1,665,158
104,213
734,924

864,199,638

31 December
2012

406,551,253
46,130,413
34,444,032
35,604,192

6,904,515
422,816
4,266,287
1,911,549
672,871
4,505
719,517

537,631,950

31 December
2013

1,157,191
975,746
902,644
601,957
349,627

94,107
39,530

146,251
4,267,053

31 December
2012

837,915
442,912
616,717
500,840
272,119
263,442
39,530
948
69,369

3,043,792
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Open Joint Stock Company Xalq Bank
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2013 (Continued) (in Azerbaijan Manats)

22. SHARE CAPITAL

As of 31 December 2013 and 2012 the Group’s shareholders’ authorized, issued and fully paid capital amounted to AZN
183,693,180 and AZN 169,099,374, respectively and comprised 3,630,300 and 3,630,300 ordinary shares with a par
value of AZN 50.60 and AZN 46.58, respectively. Each share entitles one vote to the shareholder.

During 2013 and 2012 share capital of the Group was increased by AZN 14,593,806 and AZN 28,606,764, respectively.

During 2013 and 2012 par value of ordinary shares of the Group was increased by AZN 4.02 and AZN 7.88,
respectively.

23. FINANCIAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

In the normal course of business, the Group is a party to financial instruments with off-balance sheet risk in order to
meet the needs of its customers. These instruments, involving varying degrees of credit risk, are not reflected in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit loss under contingent liabilities and commitments to extend credit, in the event
of non-performance by the other party where all counterclaims, collateral or security prove valueless, is represented by
the contractual amounts of those instruments.

The Group’s uses the same credit control and management policies in undertaking off-balance sheet commitments as
it does for on-balance operations.

Provision for losses on contingent liabilities amounted to AZN 4,373,713 and AZN 923,405 as at 31 December 2013 and
2012, respectively.

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the nominal or contract amounts and the risk amounts were:

31 December 2013 31 December 2012
Nominal Risk Nominal Risk
Amount Weighted Amount Weighted
Amount Amount
Contingent liabilities and credit commitments
Guarantees issued and similar commitments 44,394,077 44,394,077 29,397,502 29,397,502
Letters of credit and other transaction related
contingent obligations 8,300,072 4,150,036 5,061,240 2,530,620
Commitments on credits and unused credit lines 45,260,204 22,630,102 32,079,312 16,039,656
Total contingent liabilities and credit
commitments 97,954,353 71,174,215 66,538,054 47,967,778
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Open Joint Stock Company Xalq Bank
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2013 (Continued) (in Azerbaijan Manats)

Capital commitments — The Group had no material commitments for capital expenditures outstanding as at 31
December 2013.

Legal proceedings - From time to time and in the normal course of business, claims against the Group are received
from customers and counterparties. Management is of the opinion that no material unaccrued losses will be incurred
and accordingly no provision has been made in these consolidated financial statements.

The Group is receiving claims from individual customers with respect to certain commissions withheld by the Group
for loan agreements service. Management is of the opinion that such claims would not have adverse consequences for
the Group, and is in the process of establishing procedures on disclosing additional information in loan agreements in
compliance with the CBAR instruction.

Taxes - Azerbaijan commercial legislation and tax legislation in particular may give rise to varying interpretations and
amendments. In addition, as management’s interpretation of tax legislation may differ from that of the tax authorities,
transactions may be challenged by the tax authorities, and as a result the Group may be assessed additional taxes,
penalties and interest. Tax years remain open to review by the tax authorities for three years. Management believes
that the Group has already made all tax payments that are due, and therefore no provisions have been made in these
consolidated financial statements for any potential liabilities.

Pensions and retirement plans - Employees receive pension benefits from the Republic of Azerbaijan in accordance
with the laws and regulations of the country. As at 31 December 2013 the Group was not liable for any supplementary
pensions, post-retirement health care, insurance benefits, or retirement indemnities to its current or former employees.

Operating environment - The Group’s principal business activities are within Azerbaijan. Laws and regulations affecting
the business environment in Azerbaijan are subject to rapid changes and the Group’s assets and operations could be at
risk due to negative changes in the political and business environment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2013 (Continued) (in Azerbaijan Manats)

24. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

Related parties or transactions with related parties in the Group, as defined by IAS 24 “Related party disclosures”,

represent:

(@) Parties that directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries: control, or are controlled by, or are under
common control with, the Group (this includes parents, subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries); have an interest
in the Group that gives then significant influence over the Group; and that have joint control over the Group;

(b) Associates — enterprises in which the Group has significant influence and which is neither a subsidiary nor a

joint venture of the investor;

(c) Members of key management personnel of the Group or its parent;

(d) Close members of the family of any individuals referred to in (a) or (c);

(e) Parties that are entities controlled, jointly controlled or significantly influenced by, or for which significant voting
power in such entity resides with, directly or indirectly, any individual referred to in (c) or (d).

In considering each possible related party relationship, attention is directed to the substance of the relationship, and not
merely the legal form. The Group had the following transactions outstanding as at 31 December 2013 and 2012 with

related parties:

31 December 2013

31 December 2012

Related party Total category  Related party  Total category
transactions as per financial  transactions as per financial
statements caption statements
caption
Loans to customers 1,016,598,441 678,274,030
- shareholders and entities in which a substantial
interest is owned by shareholders of the Group - -
- key management personnel of the entity 72,897 126,340
Allowance for impairment losses (30,586,436) (26,669,992)
- shareholders and entities in which a substantial
interest is owned by shareholders of the Group - -
- key management personnel of the entity (2,131) (2,527)
Customer accounts 864,199,638 537,631,950
- shareholders and entities in which a substantial
interest is owned by shareholders of the Group 72,346,751 89,293,942
- key management personnel of the entity 270,084 -
Year ended Year ended
31 December 2013 31 December 2012
Related party Total category Related party Total category
transactions as per financial transactions as per financial
statements caption statements caption
Key management personnel
compensation:
short-term employee benefits 453,644 11,289,523 384,498 8,665,689
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Included in the consolidated income statement for the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012 are the following
amounts which arose due to transactions with related parties:

Year ended Year ended
31 December 2013 31 December 2012
Related party Total category Related party Total category
transactions asper transactions  as per financial
financial statements
statements caption
caption
Interest income 77,118,762 60,916,353
- shareholders and entities in which a substantial
interest is owned by shareholders of the Group - 34,681
- key management personnel of the entity 19,371 81,331
Interest expense (32,763,626) (26,284,123)
- shareholders and entities in which a substantial
interest is owned by shareholders of the Group (3,638,866) (4,033,610)
- key management personnel of the entity (11,807) (24,190)
Fee and commission income 4,909,466 4,491,737
- shareholders and entities in which a substantial
interest is owned by shareholders of the Group 66,985 30,059
- key management personnel of the entity - 13,991
Other income 841,447 481,448
- shareholders and entities in which a substantial
interest is owned by shareholders of the Group 366,519 312,200
Operating expense (24,427,778) (20,932,979)
- shareholders and entities in which a substantial
interest is owned by shareholders of the Group (457,963) (495,982)

25. SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group’s activity is sufficiently integrated and primarily relates to the banking sector. Accordingly, for purposes of IAS
14 “Segment reporting” the Group is accounted for as a single segment. The Group’s assets are located in the Republic
of Azerbaijan and major parts of its revenue and net profit arrives from operations in the Republic of Azerbaijan. The
Group’s operations include transactions with banks, legal entities and individuals. Data on other transaction balances
and their results are provided in the respective notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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26. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Estimated fair value disclosures of financial instruments are made in accordance with the requirements of IAS 32 “Financial
Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation” and IAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”. Fair value
is defined as the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between knowledgeable
willing parties in an arm’s length transaction, other than in forced or liquidation sale. The estimates presented herein are
not necessarily indicative of the amounts the Group could realize in a market exchange from the sale of its full holdings of
a particular instrument.

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities compared with the corresponding carrying amount in the consolidated
statement of financial position of the Group is presented below:

31 December 2013 31 December 2012
Carrying Fair value Garrying Fair value
amount amount
Cash and cash equivalents 83,808,518 83,808,518 58,847,518 58,847,518
Due from banks 42,880,958 42,880,958 14,997,838 14,997,838
Due to banks and government agencies 195,331,124 195,331,124 112,230,829 112,230,829
Customer accounts 864,199,638 864,199,638 537,631,950 537,631,950

The fair value of loans to customers cannot be measured reliably as it is not practicable to obtain market information or
apply any other valuation techniques on such instruments.

The fair value of equity securities included in investments available-for-sale cannot be measured reliably. As at 31 December
2013 and 2012 the cost of them was 177,469 and AZN 177,376, respectively. Since these shares are not publicly traded
and the range of reasonable fair value estimates is significant, it is not possible to estimate their fair value.

27. REGULATORY MATTERS

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require the Group to maintain minimum
amounts and ratios (as set forth in the table below) of total (12%) and tier 1 capital (6%) to risk weighted assets.

The ratio was calculated according to the principles employed by the Basel Committee by applying the following risk
estimates to the assets and off-balance sheet commitments net of allowances for impairment losses:

Weighting Description of position

0% Cash and cash equivalents

20% Nostro in OECD

100% Nostro in NON-OECD

20% Loans and advances to banks for up to 1 year

100% Loans and advances to customers

100% Other assets

50% Obligations and commitments on unused loans with the initial maturity of over 1 year
100% Guarantees

As at 31 December 2013 the Group’s total capital amount for Capital Adequacy purposes was AZN 194,508,685 and tier 1
capital amount was AZN 194,508,685 with ratios of 16% and 16%, respectively.

As at 31 December 2012 the Group’s total capital amount for Capital Adequacy purposes was AZN 184,954,637 and tier 1
capital amount was AZN 184,954,637 with ratios of 23% and 23%, respectively.

In addition, the Group has to maintain a statutory capital adequacy ratio based on the Central Bank of Azerbaijan Republic
requirements. During the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012 the Group was in compliance with the minimum capital
requirements imposed by the CBAR.
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28. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The Management Board reviews the capital structure on a semi-annual basis. As a part of this review, the Board
considers the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital. Based on recommendations of the
Board, the Group balances its overall capital structure through the payment of dividends, new share issues as well as
the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.

The Group’s overall capital risk management policy remains unchanged from 2012.
29. RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES

Management of risk is fundamental to the banking business and is an essential element of the Group’s operations. The
main risks inherent to the Group’s operations are those related to credit exposures, liquidity and market movements in
interest rates and foreign exchange rates. A description of the Group’s risk management policies in relation to those risks
follows. The Group manages the following risks:

Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk which is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an
obligation and cause the other party to incur a financial loss.

Risk management and monitoring is performed within set limits of authority, by the Credit Committees and the Group’s
Management Board. Before any application is made by the Credit Committee, all recommendations on credit processes
(borrower’s limits approved, or amendments made to loan agreements, etc.) are reviewed and approved by the experts of
Credit Department. Daily risk management is performed by the Head of Credit Departments and Branch Credit Divisions.

The Group structures the level of credit risk it undertakes by placing limits on the amount of risk accepted in relation to
one borrower, or groups of borrowers, and to industry (and geographical) segments. Limits on the level of credit risk by
a borrower and a product (by industry sector, by region) are approved monthly (quarterly) by the Management Board.
The exposure to any one borrower including banks and brokers is further restricted by sub-limits covering on and off-
balance sheet exposures which are set by the Credit Committee. Actual exposures against limits are monitored daily.

Where appropriate, and in the case of most loans, the Group obtains collateral and corporate and personal guarantees
but a significant portion is personal lending, where no such facilities can be obtained. Such risks are monitored on a
continuous basis and subject to annual or more frequent reviews.

Commitments to extend credit represent unused portions of credit in the form of loans, guarantees or letters of credit.
The credit risk on off-balance sheet financial instruments is defined as a probability of losses due to the inability of
counterparty to comply with the contractual terms and conditions. With respect to credit risk on commitments to extend
credit, the Group is potentially exposed to a loss in an amount equal to the total unused commitments. However, the
likely amount of the loss is less than the total unused commitments since most commitments to extend credit are
contingent upon customers maintaining specific credit standards. The Group applies the same credit policy to the
contingent liabilities as it does to the balance sheet financial instruments, i.e. the one based on the procedures for
approving the grant of loans, using limits to mitigate the risk, and current monitoring. The Group monitors the term to
maturity of off balance sheet contingencies because longer term commitments generally have a greater degree of credit
risk than short-term commitments.
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Maximum Exposure

The Groups maximum exposure to credit risk varies significantly and is dependant on both individual risks and general
market economy risks. The following table presents the maximum exposure to credit risk of financial assets and
contingent liabilities. For financial assets the maximum exposure equals to a carrying value of those assets prior to any
offset or collateral. For financial guarantees and other contingent liabilities the maximum exposure to credit risk is the
maximum amount the Group would have to pay if the guarantee was called on or in the case of commitments, if the
loan amount was called on.

31 December 2013

Maximum Net exposure Collateral Net exposure after
exposure after offset Pledged offset and collateral
Due from banks 42,880,958 42,880,958 - 42,880,958
Loans to customers 986,012,005 986,012,005 868,296,385 117,715,620
Investments available-for-sale 55,213,861 55,213,861 - 55,213,861

31 December 2012

Maximum  Net exposure Collateral Net exposure after
exposure after offset Pledged offset and collateral
Due from banks 14,997,838 14,997,838 - 14,997,838
Loans to customers 651,604,038 651,604,038 533,472,838 118,131,200
Investments available-for-sale 18,013,560 18,013,560 - 18,013,560

Financial assets are graded according to the current credit rating they have been issued by an internationally regarded
agency. The highest possible rating is AAA. Investment grade financial assets have ratings from AAA to BBB. Financial
assets which have ratings lower than BBB are classed as speculative grade.

The following table details the credit ratings of financial assets held by the Group:

31 December

2013
AAA AA A BBB < BBB Not rated Total
Due from banks - 35,928,153 - - 4,976,177 1,976,628 42,880,958
Loans to customers - - - - - 986,012,005 986,012,005
Investments available-
for-sale - - - - - 55,213,861 55,213,861
31 December
2012
AAA AA A BBB < BBB Not rated Total
Due from banks - 14,016,974 - - 254,233 726,631 14,997,838
Loans to customers - - - - - 651,604,038 651,604,038
Investments available-
for-sale - - - - - 18,013,560 18,013,560

The banking industry is generally exposed to credit risk through its financial assets and contingent liabilities. Credit risk
exposure of the Group is concentrated within the Republic of Azerbaijan. The exposure is monitored on a regular basis to
ensure that the credit limits and credit worthiness guidelines established by the Group’s risk management policy are not
breached. The Group enters into numerous transactions where the counterparties are not rated by international rating
agencies.
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Rating model

The Group has developed internal rating model, which allow it to determine the rating of counterparties. The rating of
corporate borrower is based on an analysis of the financial ratios of the borrower, and an analysis of the market and
industry sector, in which the borrower operates. The model also takes into consideration various qualitative factors, such
as management efficiency and borrower’s market share.

The application of the internal rating model results in a standardized approach in the analysis of corporate borrowers
and provides a quantitative assessment of the creditworthiness of a borrower that does not have a rating from an
international rating agency. The model takes into account specific local market conditions.

The quality of the internal rating model is examined on a regular basis through an assessment of both its effectiveness
and validity. The Group revises the model when deficiencies are identified.

The Group applies internal rating methodologies to specific corporate loans and groups of retail and small business
loans, which incorporate various underlying master scales that are different from that used by international rating
agencies. As a result, it is not possible to make a cross-product score comparison which would agree to the outstanding
balance of loans to customers per the statement of financial position. As such, more detailed information is not being
presented.

The following table details the carrying value of assets that are impaired and the ageing of those that are past due but
not impaired:

Financial assets past due 31 December 2013
but not impaired
Neither past 0-3 3-6 6 months  Greater Financial Total
due nor months months to1year thanone assets that
impaired year have been
impaired
Due from banks 42,880,958 - - - - - 42,880,958
Loans to customers 335,756,301 - - - - 650,255,704 986,012,005
Investments
available-for-sale 55,213,861 - - - - - 55,213,861
Financial assets past due 31 December 2012
but not impaired
Neither past 0-3 3-6 6 months Greater Financial Total
due nor months months to1year thanone assets that
impaired year have been
impaired
Due from banks 14,997,838 - - - - - 14,997,838
Loans to customers 123,421,437 - - - - 528,182,601 651,604,038
Investments
available-for-sale 18,013,560 - - - - - 18,013,560
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Geographical concentration

The Assets and Liabilities Management Committee exercises control over the risk in the legislation and regulatory arena
and assess its influence on the Group’s activity. This approach allows the Group to minimize potential losses from the
investment climate fluctuations in the Republic of Azerbaijan. The Group’s Management Board sets up country limits,
which mainly applies to banks of the Commonwealth of Independent States and Baltic countries.

The geographical concentration of assets and liabilities is set out below:

The Republic of 31 December

86

CIS countries

OECD countries

Azerbaijan 2013 Total
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 83,808,518 - - 83,808,518
Gold 6,831,161 - - 6,831,161
Due from banks 6,638,296 314,509 35,928,153 42,880,958
Loans to customers 986,012,005 - - 986,012,005
Investments available for sale 55,211,392 - 2,469 55,213,861
Property and equipment 75,522,590 - - 75,522,590
Investment property 6,691,512 - - 6,691,512
Intangible assets 1,927,592 - - 1,927,592
Deferred income tax asset 1,003,798 - - 1,003,798
Other assets 6,022,990 13,622 23,680 6,060,292
TOTAL ASSETS 1,229,669,854 328,131 35,954,302 1,265,952,287
LIABILITIES
Due to banks and government agencies 195,331,124 - - 195,331,124
Customer accounts 864,199,638 - - 864,199,638
Provision for impairment losses on other
operations 4,373,713 - - 4,373,713
Current income tax liability 1,344,482 - - 1,344,482
Other liabilities 4,266,491 235 327 4,267,053
TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,069,515,448 235 327 1,069,516,010
NET POSITION 160,154,406 327,896 35,953,975
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The Republic of

31 December

Azerbaljan CIS countries OECD countries 9012 Total
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 58,847,518 - - 58,847,518
Gold 9,375,906 - - 9,375,906
Due from banks 762,553 218,311 14,016,974 14,997,838
Loans to customers 651,604,038 - - 651,604,038
Investments available-for-sale 18,011,184 - 2,376 18,013,560
Property and equipment 73,846,828 - - 73,846,828
Investment property 6,374,800 - - 6,374,800
Intangible assets 627,640 - - 627,640
Deferred income tax asset 439,806 - - 439,806
Other assets 4,035,720 29,431 1,219,174 5,284,325
TOTAL ASSETS 823,925,993 247,742 15,238,524 839,412,259
LIABILITIES
Due to banks and government agencies 112,230,829 - - 112,230,829
Customer accounts 537,631,950 - - 537,631,950
Provision for impairment losses on other
operations 923,405 - - 923,405
Other liabilities 3,007,588 3,934 32,270 3,043,792
TOTAL LIABILITIES 653,793,772 3,934 32,270 653,829,976
NET POSITION 170,132,221 243,808 15,206,254
Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk refers to the availability of sufficient funds to meet deposit withdrawals and other financial commitments
associated with financial instruments as they actually fall due. In order to manage liquidity risk, the Group performs
daily monitoring of expected future cash flows on clients’ and banking operations, which is a part of the assets/liabilities
management process. The Assets and Liabilities Management Committee sets limits on the minimum proportion of
maturing funds available to meet deposit withdrawals and on the minimum level of interbank and other borrowing
facilities that should be in place to cover withdrawals at unexpected levels of demand.

An analysis of the liquidity and interest rate risks is presented in the following table. The tables have been drawn up to
detail:

(i) The remaining contractual maturity of non-derivative financial liabilities based on the undiscounted cash flows of
financial liabilities (both interest and principal cash flows) based on the earliest date on which the Group can be required
to pay, and

(ii) The expected maturity for non-derivative financial assets based on the undiscounted contractual maturities of the
financial assets including interest that will be earned on those assets except where the Group anticipates that the cash
flow will occur in a different period.

i11lik Hesabat 2013 / Annual Report 2013

87



Open Joint Stock Company Xalq Bank

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2013 (Continued) (in Azerbaijan Manats)

Weighted Up to 1 monthto 3 month to 1 year to Over 5 Maturity 31 December
average 1 month 3 months 1 year 5 years years undefined 2013 Total
effective
interest
rate
ASSETS
Due from banks 12,00% - - 1,960,000 - - - 1,960,000
Loans to customers 7,48% 27,056,431 9,995,251 243,318,408 533,606,224 152,204,412 - 966,180,726
Investments available
for sale 3,13% - 49,011,000 - - 5,015,000 - 54,026,000
Total interest bearing
assets at fixed rates 27,056,431 9,995,251 245,278,408 533,606,224 152,204,412 - 968,140,726
Total interest bearing
assets 27,056,431 9,995,251 245,278,408 533,606,224 152,204,412 - 968,140,726
Cash and cash
equivalents 62,694,891 - - - - 21,113,627 83,808,518
Gold 6,831,161 - - - - - 6,831,161
Due from banks 39,120,080 - - - - 1,800,878 40,920,958
Loans to customers 6,802,683 - - - - 13,028,596 19,831,279
Investments available
for sale - 926,030 84,362 - - 177,469 1,187,861
Other assets 1,627,953 721,892 - 1,120,321 - - 3,470,166
144,133,199 11,643,173 245,362,770 534,726,545 152,204,412 36,120,570 1,124,190,669
LIABILITIES
Due to banks and
government agencies 3,15% - 100,548 72,106,104 44,146,702 74,744,991 - 191,098,345
Customer accounts 471% 23,736,878 166,521,242 102,996,104 252,789,163 - - 546,043,387
Total interest bearing
liabilities at fixed rates 23,736,878 166,621,790 175,102,208 296,935,865 74,744,991 - 737,141,732
Total interest bearing
liabilities 23,736,878 166,621,790 175,102,208 296,935,865 74,744,991 - 737,141,732
Due to banks and
government agencies 4,232,779 - - - - - 4,232,779
Customer accounts 263,989,869 - - - - 54,166,382 318,156,251
Current income tax
liability - 1,344,482 - - - - 1,344,482
Other liabilities 1,671,810 942,174 1,653,069 - - - 4,267,053
Guarantees issued and
similar commitments 150,775 38,598,275 5,625,027 20,000 - - 44,394,077
Letters of credit and
other transaction
related contingent
obligations 2,917,773 280,067 4,603,182 499,050 - - 8,300,072
Commitments on
credits and unused
credit lines 1,987,367 9,010,825 6,440,182 18,392,022 9,429,810 - 45,260,206
298,687,251 216,797,613 193,423,668 315,846,937 84,174,801 54,166,382 1,163,096,652
Liquidity gap (154,554,052) (205,154,440) 51,939,102 218,879,608 68,029,611
Interest sensitivity
gap for fixed rate
instruments 3,319,553 (156,626,539) 70,176,200 236,670,359 77,459,421
Interest sensitivity gap 3,319,553 (156,626,539) 70,176,200 236,670,359 77,459,421
Cumulative interest
sensitivity gap 3,319,553 (153,306,986) (83,130,786) 153,539,573 230,998,994
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Weighted Upto1
average month
effective
interest
rate
ASSETS
Due from banks 0.03% 9,002
Loans to customers 9.95% 19,567,040
Investments available-
for-sale 3.01% -
Total interest bearing
assets at fixed rates 19,576,042
Total interest bearing
assets 19,576,042
Cash and cash
equivalents 41,869,351
Gold 9,375,906
Due from banks 14,088,660
Loans to customers 6,642,733
Investments available-
for-sale 164,184
Other assets 469,402
92,186,278
LIABILITIES
Due to banks and
government agencies 3.01% 237,148
Customer accounts 6.40% 14,486,726
Total interest bearing
liabilities at fixed rates 14,723,874
Total interest bearing
liabilities 14,723,874
Due to banks and
government agencies 4,096,804
Customer accounts 159,166,582
Other liabilities 1,867,577
Guarantees issued and
similar commitments 1,875,749
Letters of credit and
other transaction related
contingent obligations 249,190
Commitments on
credits and unused
credit lines 9,940,125
191,919,901
Liquidity gap (99,733,623)
Interest sensitivity gap
for fixed rate instruments 4,852,168
Interest sensitivity gap 4,852,168
Cumulative interest
sensitivity gap 4,852,168
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1 monthto3 3 monthto 1

months

year

18,368,758 169,545,002

18,368,758

18,368,758

18,368,758

1,611,887
55,886,916

57,498,803

57,498,803

29,568

1,638,229

4,812,050

63,978,650
(45,609,892)

(39,130,045)
(39,130,045)

(34,277,877)

169,545,002

169,545,002

169,545,002

48,645,709
99,649,428

148,295,137

148,295,137

927,349

25,431,996

2,320,791
176,975,273
(7,430,271)

21,249,865
21,249,865

(13,028,012)

Report 2013

1yearto5 Over 5 years

years

321,876,725
996,000

321,876,725

321,876,725

321,876,725

27,209,760
208,442,298

235,652,058

235,652,058

451,528

14,250,639
250,354,225
71,522,500

86,224,667
86,224,667

73,196,655

107,999,413
16,676,000

107,999,413

107,999,413

107,999,413

30,429,521

30,429,521

30,429,521

5,567,757
35,997,278
72,002,135

77,569,892
77,569,892

150,766,547

Maturity

undefined

16,978,167

900,176
7,604,367

177,376

25,660,086

31 December
2012 Total

9,002
637,356,938

17,672,000

637,365,940
637,365,940

58,847,518

9,375,906
14,988,836
14,247,100

341,560
469,402

735,636,262

108,134,025
378,465,368

486,599,393
486,599,393

4,096,804
159,166,582
2,824,494

29,397,502

5,061,240

32,079,312
719,225,327
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Market Risk

Market risk covers interest rate risk, currency risk and other pricing risks to which the Group is exposed. There have
been no changes as to the way the Group measures risk or to the risk it is exposed in 2013.

The Group is exposed to interest rate risks as entities in the Group borrow funds at both fixed and floating rates. The risk
is managed by the Group maintaining an appropriate mix between fixed and floating rate borrowings.

The ALMC also manages interest rate and market risks by matching the Group’s interest rate position, which provides
the Group with a positive interest margin. The Department of Financial Control conducts monitoring of the Group’s
current financial performance, estimates the Group’s sensitivity to changes in interest rates and its influence on the
Group’s profitability.

The majority of the Group’s loan contracts and other financial assets and liabilities that bear interest are either variable
or contain clauses enabling the interest rate to be changed at the option of the lender. The Group monitors its interest
rate margin and consequently does not consider itself exposed to significant interest rate risk or consequential cash
flow risk.

Interest rate risk

The Group manages fair value interest rate risk through periodic estimation of potential losses that could arise from
adverse changes in market conditions. The Department of Financial Control conducts monitoring of the Group’s current
financial performance, estimates the Group’s sensitivity to changes in fair value interest rates and its influence on the
Group’s profitability.

The following table presents a sensitivity analysis of interest rate risk, which has been determined based on “reasonably
possible changes in the risk variable”. The level of these changes is determined by management and is contained within
the risk reports provided to key management personnel.

Impact on profit before tax:

As at 31 December 2013 As at 31 December 2012

Interest rate Interest rate Interest rate Interest rate
+1% -1% +1% -1%

Assets:

Due from banks 19,600 (19,600) 90 (90)
Loans to customers 9,661,807 (9,661,807) 6,373,569 (6,373,569)
Investments available-for-sale 540,260 (540,260) 176,720 (176,720)
Liabilities:

Due to banks and government agencies (1,910,983) 1,910,983 (1,081,340) 1,081,340
Customer accounts (5,460,434) 5,460,434 (3,784,654) 3,784,654
Net impact on profit before tax 2,850,250 (2,850,250) 1,684,385 (1,684,385)

Impact on shareholders’ equity:

As at 31 December 2013

As at 31 December 2012

Interest rate Interest rate Interest rate Interest rate
+1% -1% +1% -1%

Assets:

Due from banks 19,600 (19,600) 90 (90)
Loans to customers 9,661,807 (9,661,807) 6,373,569 (6,373,569)
Investments available-for-sale 540,260 (540,260) 176,720 (176,720)
Liabilities:

Due to banks and government agencies (1,910,983) 1,910,983 (1,081,340) 1,081,340
Customer accounts (5,460,434) 5,460,434 (3,784,654) 3,784,654
Net impact on profit before tax 2,850,250 (2,850,250) 1,684,385 (1,684,385)
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Open Joint Stock Company Xalq Bank
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2013 (Continued) (in Azerbaijan Manats)

Currency risk

Currency risk is defined as the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates.
The Group is exposed to the effects of fluctuations in the prevailing foreign currency exchange rates on its financial position and
cash flows.

The Management Board sets limits on the level of exposure by currencies. These limits also comply with the minimum requirements
of the CBAR. The Group’s exposure to foreign currency exchange rate risk is presented in the table below:

Other 31 December
AZN usb EUR currency 2013 Total

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 62,916,374 5,823,745 15,065,568 2,831 83,808,518
Gold 6,831,161 - - - 6,831,161
Due from banks 11,297,629 13,419,662 17,893,037 270,630 42,880,958
Loans to customers 726,624,874 259,156,985 230,146 - 986,012,005
Investments available for sale 55,211,392 - 2,469 - 55,213,861
Property and equipment 75,522,590 - - - 75,522,590
Investment property 6,691,512 - - - 6,691,512
Intangible assets 1,927,592 - - - 1,927,592
Deferred income tax asset 1,003,798 - - - 1,003,798
Other assets 5,455,334 527,789 73,508 3,661 6,060,292
TOTAL ASSETS 953,482,256 278,928,181 33,264,728 277,122 1,265,952,287
LIABILITIES
Due to banks and government
agencies 123,606,091 71,709,773 15,260 - 195,331,124
Customer accounts 623,944,405 206,449,362 33,788,195 17,676 864,199,638
Provision for impairment losses on
other operations 4,373,713 - - - 4,373,713
Current income tax liability 1,344,482 - - - 1,344,482
Other liabilities 3,537,515 594,579 125,379 9,580 4,267,053
TOTAL LIABILITIES 756,806,206 278,753,714 33,928,834 27,256 1,069,516,010
OPEN BALANCE SHEET POSITION 196,676,050 174,467 (664,106) 249,866
i11lik Hesabat 2013 / Annual Report 2013
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Open Joint Stock Company Xalq Bank

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2013 (Continued) (in Azerbaijan Manats)

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Gold

Due from banks

Loans to customers
Investments available-for-sale
Property and equipment
Investment property
Intangible assets

Deferred income tax asset
Other assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES

Due to banks and government
agencies

Customer accounts

Provision for impairment losses on
other operations

Other liabilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES

OPEN CURRENCY POSITION

Currency risk sensitivity

AZN

47,573,687
9,375,906
13,472,746
422,782,445
18,011,184
73,846,828
6,374,800
627,640
439,806
5,096,587

597,601,629

87,452,893
278,156,066

923,405
2,609,427

369,141,791

228,459,838

usD

9,453,481

713,949
227,756,525

163,253

238,087,208

24,775,997
254,355,505

382,565
279,514,067

(41,426,859)

EUR

1,814,555

636,585
1,065,068
2,376

6,302

3,524,886

1,939
5,116,335

50,808
5,169,082

(1,644,196)

Other
currency

5,795

174,558

18,183

198,536

4,044

992
5,036

193,500

31 December
2012 Total

58,847,518
9,375,906
14,997,838
651,604,038
18,013,560
73,846,828
6,374,800
627,640
439,806
5,284,325

839,412,259

112,230,829
537,631,950

923,405
3,043,792

653,829,976

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 10% increase and decrease in the USD and Euro against the
AZN. 10% is the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency risk internally to key management personnel
and represents management’s assessment of the possible change in foreign currency exchange rates. The sensitivity
analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation at the
end of the period for a 10% change in foreign currency rates. The sensitivity analysis includes external loans as well as
loans to foreign operations within the Group where the denomination of the loan is in a currency other than the currency

of the lender or the borrower.

Impact on profit or loss

Impact on profit or loss

As at 31 December 2013

AZN / USD AZN / USD
+10% -10%
(17,447) 17,447

As at 31 December 2013

AZN / EURO AZN / EURO
+10% -10%
66,411 (66,411)

i11ik Hesabat

As at 31 December 2012

AZN / USD AZN / USD
+10% -10%
4,142,686 (4,142,686)

As at 31 December 2012

AZN / EURO AZN / EURO
+10% -10%
164,420 (164,420)
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Open Joint Stock Company Xalq Bank
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2013 (Continued) (in Azerbaijan Manats)

Limitations of sensitivity analysis

The above tables demonstrate the effect of a change in a key assumption while other assumptions remain unchanged. In
reality, there is a correlation between the assumptions and other factors. It should also be noted that these sensitivities
are non-linear, and larger or smaller impacts should not be interpolated or extrapolated from these results.

The sensitivity analyses do not take into consideration that the Group’s assets and liabilities are actively managed.
Additionally, the financial position of the Group may vary at the time that any actual market movement occurs. For
example, the Group’s financial risk management strategy aims to manage the exposure to market fluctuations. As
investment markets move past various trigger levels, management actions could include selling investments, changing
investment portfolio allocation and taking other protective action. Consequently, the actual impact of a change in the
assumptions may not have any impact on the liabilities, whereas assets are held at market value on the consolidated
statement of financial position. In these circumstances, the different measurement bases for liabilities and assets may
lead to volatility in shareholder equity.

Other limitations in the above sensitivity analyses include the use of hypothetical market movements to demonstrate
potential risk that only represent the Group’s view of possible near-term market changes that cannot be predicted with
any certainty; and the assumption that all interest rates move in an identical fashion.
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